009196/100

In accordance with Section 1046 of the Companies Act 2006 & Regulation 4(1) of the Overseas Companies Regulations 2009.

# OS INO1 SANE DAY Registration of an overseas company oper

Registration of an overseas company oper UK establishment





A05 28/1

28/12/2018 COMPANIES HOUSE

#73

A fee is payable with this form Please see 'How to pay' on the last page.

- ✓ What this form is for
  You may use this form to register a
  UK establishment.
- What this form is NOT for You cannot use this form to change the details of an existing company, officer or establishment.

For further information, please refer to our guidance at www.gov.uk/companieshouse

Part 1	Overseas company details (Name)				For official use
A1	Corporate name of overseas company		*****		
Corporate name●	ONYX HOLDINGS LIMITED	. Ple	<ul> <li>Filling in this form Please complete in typescript (10pt or above), or in bold black capitals All fields are mandatory unless specified or indicated by *</li> <li>This must be the corporate name in the home state or country in which the company is incorporated.</li> </ul>		
	Do you propose to carry on business in the UK under the corporate name as incorporated in your home state or country, or under an alternative name?	sp			
	<ul> <li>→ To register using your corporate name, go to Section A3.</li> <li>→ To register using an alternative name, go to Section A2.</li> </ul>	the			
A2	Alternative name of overseas company *				,
	Please show the alternative name that the company will use to do business in the UK.	alt	● A company may register an alternative name under which it proposes to carry on business in the		ne under which it
Alternative name	ONYX HOLDINGS (LONDON) LIMITED		United Kingdom under Section 1048 of the Companies Act 2006. Once		
(if applicable)		reg cor	registered it is treated as being its corporate name for the purposes of law in the UK.		
A3	Overseas company name restrictions				
	This section does not apply to a European Economic Area (EEA) company registering its corporate name.	ге: A	Overseas company name restrictions A list of sensitive or restricted word or expressions that require consent can be found in guidance available on our website:  www.gov.uk/companieshouse	ve or restricted words	
	Please tick the box only if the proposed company name contains sensitive or restricted words or expressions that require you to seek comments of a government department or other specified body.	ca			
	☐ I confirm that the proposed company name contains sensitive or restricted words or expressions and that approval, where appropriate, has been sought of a government department or other specified body and I attach a copy of their response.				
	•	:			

OS IN01
Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 2	Overseas company details		
B1	Particulars previously delivered		
	Have particulars about this company been previously delivered in respect of another UK establishment.  → No Go to Section B2.  → Yes Please enter the registration number below and then go to Part 5	The particulars are: legal form, identity of register, number in registration, director and secretaries details, whether the company is a credit or financial institution,	
	of the form. Please note the original UK establishment particulars must be filed up to date.	law, governing law, accounting requirements, objects, share capital, constitution, and accounts.	
UK establishment registration number	B R		
B2	Credit or financial institution		
	Is the company a credit or financial institution?●  ☐ Yes ☐ No	● Please tick one box.	
B3	Company details		
	If the company is registered in its country of incorporation, please enter the details below.	<ul> <li>Please state whether or not the company is limited. Please also include whether the company is</li> </ul>	
Legal form ●	Private Limited Company	a private or public company if	
Country of incorporation *	Jersey	This will be the registry where the company is registered in its parent country.	
Identity of register in which it is	Jersey Financial Services Commision		
registered  Registration number in that register	Po Box 267, 14-18 Castle Street ST. HELIER, JERSEY JE4 9QD  1 2 4 2 9 8		
B4	EEA or non-EEA member state		
	Was the company formed outside the EEA?		
	<ul> <li>→ Yes Complete Sections B5 and B6.</li> <li>→ No Go to Section B6.</li> </ul>		
B5	Governing law and accounting requirements		
	Please give the law under which the company is incorporated.	This means the relevant rules or legislation which regulates the	
Governing law●	Jersey	incorporation of companies in that state.	
	Is the company required to prepare, audit and disclose accounting documents under parent law?		
	→ Yes Complete the details below. → No Go to Part 3.	·	

	OF INIO1	
	O\$ IN01 Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment	
	Please give the period for which the company is required to prepare accounts by parent law.	
From	d d m	
То	d d m m	
	Please give the period allowed for the preparation and public disclosure of accounts for the above accounting period.	
Months		
B6	Latest disclosed accounts	
	Are copies of the latest disclosed accounts being sent with this form? Please note if accounts have been disclosed, a copy must be sent with the form, and, if applicable, with a certified translation.  Yes.	● Please tick the appropriate box(es).
	Please indicate what documents have been disclosed.	
	Please tick this box if you have enclosed a copy of the accounts.	
	Please tick this box if you have enclosed a certified translation of the accounts.	
	Please tick this box if no accounts have been disclosed.	

OS IN01
Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 3	Constitution	· ·
C1	Constitution of company	
	<ul> <li>The following documents must be delivered with this application.</li> <li>Certified copy of the company's constitution and, if applicable, a certified translation.</li> <li>Please tick the appropriate box(es) below.</li> <li>✓ I have enclosed a certified copy of the company's constitution.</li> <li>✓ I enclose a certified translation, if applicable.</li> </ul>	● A certified copy is defined as a copy certified as correct and authenticated by - the secretary or a director of the company, permanent representative, administrator, administrative receiver, receiver manager, receiver and liquidator.  ● A certified translation into English must be authenticated by the secretary or a director of the company, permanent representative, administrator, administrative receiver manager, receiver
		and liquidator.
(2	EEA or non-EEA member state	
	Was the company formed outside the EEA?	
	<ul> <li>→ Yes Go to Section C3.</li> <li>→ No Go to Part 4 'Officers of the company'.</li> </ul>	
C3	Constitutional documents	
	Are all of the following details in the copy of the constitutional documents of the company?  - Address of principal place of business or registered office in home country of incorporation  - Objects of the Company  - Amount of issued share capital  - Yes Go to Part 4 Officers of the company	
	→ No If any of the above details are not included in the constitutional documents, please enter them in Section C4. The information is not required if it is contained within the constitutional documents accompanying this registration.	
C4	Information not included in the constitutional documents	<u>·</u>
_	Please give the address of principal place of business or registered office in the country of incorporation.	<ul> <li>This address will appear on the public record.</li> </ul>
Building name/numb	er 22	<ul> <li>Please give a brief description of the company's business.</li> </ul>
Street	GRENVILLE STREET	<ul> <li>Please specify the amount of shares issued and the value.</li> </ul>
Post town	ST.HELLIER	
County/Region	JERSEY	
Postcode	J E 4 8 P X	
Country	Please give the objects of the company and the amount of issued share capital.	
Objects of the company	General Trading	
Amount of issued	one share	

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 4	Officers of the company	
	Have particulars about this company been previously delivered in respect of another UK establishment?	Continuation pages Please use a continuation page
	<ul> <li>→ Yes Please ensure you entered the registration number in Section B1</li> <li>and then go to Part 5 of this form.</li> <li>→ No Complete the officer details.</li> </ul>	if you need to enter more officer details.
Secretary	For a secretary who is an individual, go to Section D1; for a corporate secretary, go to Section E1; for a director who is an individual, go to Section F1; or for a corporate director, go to Section G1.	
D1	Secretary details●	,
•	Use this section to list all the secretaries of the company. Please complete Sections D1-D3. For a corporate secretary, complete Sections E1-E5. Please use a continuation page if necessary.	Corporate details     Please use Sections E1-E5 to enter corporate secretary details.
Full forename(s)		Former name(s) Please provide any previous names
Surname		(including maiden or married names) which have been used for business
Former name(s)●		purposes in the last 20 years.
D2	Secretary's service address •	
Building name/number		Service address This is the address that will appear
Street		on the public record. This does not have to be your usual residential address.
Post town		If you provide your residential address here it will appear on the
County/Region		public record.
Postcode		
Country		
D3	Secretary's authority	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	Please enter the extent of your authority as secretary. Please tick one box.	If you have indicated that the extent of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authority	☐ Limited ♠	provide a brief description of the limited authority in the box below.
	☐ Unlimited	The state of the s
Description of limited		jointly, please enter the name(s) of the person(s) with whom you are
authority, if applicable	Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.	authorised to act below.
	□ Alone	
	□ Jointly ●	
If applicable, name(s)		
of person(s) with whom you are		
acting jointly		

OS IN01
Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

## **Corporate secretary**

Ε1	Corporate secretary details •	
	Use this section to list all the corporate secretaries of the company.  Please complete Sections E1-E5. Please use a continuation page if necessary.	<ul> <li>Registered or principal address</li> <li>This is the address that will appear on the public record. This address</li> </ul>
Name of corporate body or firm		must be a physical location for the delivery of documents, it cannot be a PO box number (unless contained
Building name/number		within a full address), DX number or LP (Legal Post in Scotland) number.
Street		
Post town		
County/Region		
Postcode		
Country		
E 2	Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm	<u> </u>
	Is the corporate secretary registered within the European Economic Area (EEA)?  • Yes Complete Section E3 only • No Complete Section E4 only	
E3	EEA companies ●	
	Please give details of the register where the company file is kept (including the relevant state) and the registration number in that register.	● EEA A full list of countries of the EEA can be found in our guidance:
Where the company/ firm is registered●		Www.gov.uk/companieshouse     This is the register mentioned in     Article 3 of the First Company Law
Registration number		Directive (68/151/EEC).
E4	Non-EEA companies	
	Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by which it is governed. If applicable, please also give details of the register in which it is entered (including the state) and its registration number in that register.	Mon-EEA     Where you have provided details of the register (including state) where the company or firm is registered.
Legal form of the corporate body or firm		you must also provide its number in that register
Governing law		
If applicable, where the company/firm is registered •		
If applicable, the registration number		

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

E5	Corporate secretary's authority	,
Extent of authority  Description of limited authority, if applicable	Please enter the extent of your authority as corporate secretary. Please tick one box.	If you have indicated that the extended from authority is limited, please
	□ Limited ● □ Unlimited	provide a brief description of the limited authority in the box below.
	Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.	jointly, please enter the name(s) of the person(s) with whom you are authorised to act below.
	□ Alone □ Jointly ●	
If applicable, name(s) of person(s) with whom you are acting jointly		

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

#### Director

F1	Director details ●	
	Use this section to list all the directors of the company. Please complete Sections F1-F5. For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5. Please use a continuation page if necessary.	Corporate details Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter corporate director details.
Full forename(s)	Maria	Former name(s) Please provide any previous names
Surname	PATTICHI	(including maiden or married names) which have been used for business
Former name(s)		purposes in the last 20 years.  Country/State of residence This is in respect of your usual residential address as stated in
Country/State of residence ●	ENGLAND	Section F5.
Nationality	CYPRIOT	Month and year of birth     Please provide month and year only.
Month/year of birth •	"O "B	Provide full date of birth in section F4.
Business occupation (if any) ●	DIRECTOR	Business occupation     If you have a business occupation,     please enter here, If you do not,     please leave blank.
F2	Director's service address ●	
Building name/number	FLAT 74 Bryanston Court	Service address This is the address that will appear
Street	137 George Street	on the public record. This does not have to be your usual residential address.
Post town	London	If you provide your residential address here it will appear on the
County/Region		public record.
Postcode	W 1 H 7 H D	·
Country		
F3	Director's authority	·
	Please enter the extent of your authority as director. Please tick one box.	Off you have indicated that the extent of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authority	☐ Limited ●	provide a brief description of the limited authority in the box below.
	☑ Unlimited	If you have indicated that you are not authorised to act alone but only
Description of limited authority, if applicable		jointly, please enter the name(s) of the person(s) with whom you are authorised to act below.
	Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.	
	✓ Alone ☐ Jointly ●	
If applicable, name(s) of person(s) with whom you are acting jointly		
of person(s) with whom you are		

OS IN01
Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

## **Corporate director**

G1	Corporate director details ●	
	Use this section to list all the corporate directors of the company.  Please complete G1-G5. Please use a continuation page if necessary.	Registered or principal address This is the address that will appear on the public record. This address
Name of corporate body or firm		must be a physical location for the delivery of documents, it cannot be a PO box number (unless contained
Building name/number		within a full address), DX number or LP (Legal Post in Scotland) number.
Street		
Post town		· ·
County/Region		
Postcode		
Country		
G2	Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm	<u></u>
_ <del></del>	Is the corporate director registered within the European Economic Area (EEA)?	
	+ Yes Complete Section G3 only	
	→ Na Complete Section G4 only	
<b>G</b> 3	EEA companies •	
to de la companya de	Please give details of the register where the company file is kept (including the relevant state) and the registration number in that register.	● EEA  A full list of countries of the EEA can be found in our guidance:  www.gov.uk/companieshouse
Where the company/ firm is registered ●		This is the register mentioned in Article 3 of the First Company Law
Registration number		Directive (68/151/EEC).
G4	Non-EEA companies	
	Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by which it is governed. If applicable, please also give details of the register in which it is entered (including the state) and its registration number in that register.	Mon-EEA     Where you have provided details of the register (including state) where the company or firm is registered.
Legal form of the corporate body or firm		you must also provide its number in that register
Governing law		
If applicable, where the company/firm is registered •		
If applicable, the registration number		
		. l

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

<b>G</b> 5	Corporate director's authority	
	Please enter the extent of your authority as corporate director. Please tick one box.	If you have indicated that the extent     of your authority is limited, please     provide a brief description of the
Description of limited authority, if applicable authority, if applicable of person(s) with whom you are acting jointly	☐ Limited ● ☐ Unlimited	limited authority in the box below.  Off you have indicated that you are not authorised to act alone but only jointly, please enter the name(s) of
	Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.  □ Alone □ Jointly ●	the person(s) with whom you are authorised to act below.

OS IN01
Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 5	UK establishment details	
Н1	Documents previously delivered - constitution	
_ <del>_</del>	Has the company previously registered a certified copy of the company's constitution with material delivered in respect of another UK establishment?	
	<ul> <li>→ No Go to Section H3.</li> <li>→ Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go to Section H2.</li> </ul>	
UK establishment registration number	BR	
H2	Documents previously delivered – accounting documents	
	Has the company previously delivered a copy of the company's accounting documents with material delivered in respect of another UK establishment?	
	<ul> <li>→ No Go to Section H3.</li> <li>→ Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go to Section H3.</li> </ul>	
UK establishment registration number	B R	
НЗ	Delivery of accounts and reports	
	This section must be completed. Please state if the company intends to comply with accounting requirements with respect to this establishment or in respect of another UK establishment.	Please tick the appropriate box.
	☑ In respect of this establishment. Please go to Section H4.	
	In respect of another UK establishment. Please give the registration number below, then go to Section H4.	
UK establishment registration number	BR	
Н4	Particulars of UK establishment ●	
	You must enter the name and address of the UK establishment.	Address This is the address that will appear
Name of establishment	ONYX HOLDINGS LIMITED	on the public record.
Building name/number	4	
Street	SOUTH EALING ROAD	
Post town	LONDON	
County/Region		
Postcode	W 5 4 Q A	
Country		
,	Please give the date the establishment was opened and the business of the establishment.	
Date establishment opened		
Business carried on at the UK establishment	PROPERTY HOLDINGS	

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 6	Permanent representative				
	Please enter the name and address of every person authorised to represent the company as a permanent representative of the company in respect of the UK establishment.				
J1	Permanent representative's details				
	Please use this section to list all the permanent representatives of the company. Please complete Sections J1-J4.	Continuation pages Please use a continuation page if you need to enter more details.			
Full forename(s)	MARIA				
Surname	PATTICHI				
12	Permanent representative's service address ●				
Building name/number	FLAT 74 BRYANSTON COURT	Service address			
Street	137 GEORGE STREET	This is the address that will appear on the public record. This does not have to be your usual residential address.			
Post town	LONDON	If you provide your residential			
County/Region		address here it will appear on the public record.			
Postcode	W 1 H 7 H D				
Country					
13	Permanent representative's authority	·			
<del></del>	Please enter the extent of your authority as permanent representative. Please tick one box.	If you have indicated that the exter of your authority is limited, please provide a brief description of the limited authority in the box below.			
Extent of authority	☐ Limited ●				
	☑ Unlimited	Off you have indicated that you are not authorised to act alone but only jointly, please enter the name(s) of			
Description of limited authority, if applicable		the person(s) with whom you are authorised to act below.			
	Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.				
	☑ Alone				
	☐ Jointly ●				
If applicable, name(s) of person(s) with					
whom you are acting jointly					

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

	the company have any person(s) in the UK authorised to accept service of ments on behalf of the company in respect of its UK establishment?  → Yes Please enter the name and service address of every person(s)	
	authorised below.  → No Tick the box below then go to Part 8 'Signature'.	
$\square$	If there is no such person, please tick this box.	
K1 Deta in th	ils of person authorised to accept service of documents e UK	
Pleas Pleas	e use this section to list all the persons' authorised to accept service below. e complete Sections K1-K2.	Continuation pages Please use a continuation page if you need to enter more details.
Full forename(s)		
Surname		
K2 Servi	ce address of person authorised to accept service •	
Building name/number		Service address
Street		This is the address that will appear on the public record. This does not have to be your usual residential address. Please note, a DX address
Post town		would not be acceptable.
County/Region		
Postcode		
Country		

OS IN01
Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 8	Signature		
	This must be completed by all companies.		
	I am signing this form on behalf of the company.		
Signature	Signature * MRoutlichi	×	
	This form may be signed by: Director, Secretary, Permanent representative.		

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

## **Presenter information** You do not have to give any contact information, but if you do it will help Companies House if there is a query on the form. The contact information you give will be visible to searchers of the public record. Michael HOLDER **AA COMPANY SERVICES LIMITED** Address UNIT 5 25-7 THE BURROUGHS LONDON R N Country 0208 203 0393 Scotland: Checklist We may return forms completed incorrectly or with information missing. Please make sure you have remembered the following: ☐ The overseas corporate name on the form matches the constitutional documents exactly. You have included a copy of the appropriate correspondence in regard to sensitive words, if appropriate. ☐ You have included certified copies and certified translations of the constitutional documents, if appropriate. ☐ You have included a copy of the latest disclosed accounts and certified translations, if appropriate. Cardiff, CF14 3WE. ☐ You have completed all of the company details in Section B3 if the company has not registered an existing establishment. ☐ You have complete details for all company secretaries and directors in Part 4 if the company has not registered an existing establishment. □ Any addresses given must be a physical location. They cannot be a PO Box number (unless part of a full service address), DX or LP (Legal Post in Scotland) number. ☐ You have completed details for all permanent representatives in Part 6 and persons authorised to accept service in Part 7. You have signed the form.

#### Important information

Please note that all information on this form will appear on the public record, apart from information relating to usual residential addresses and day of birth.

## How to pay

A fee of £20 is payable to Companies House in respect of a registration of an overseas company. Make cheques or postal orders payable to 'Companies House.'

#### Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House address, however for expediency we advise you to return it to the appropriate address below.

#### **England and Wales:**

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ. DX 33050 Cardiff.

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2, 139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF. DX ED235 Edinburgh 1 or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post).

#### Northern Ireland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG. DX 481 N.R. Belfast 1.

#### **Higher protection**

If you are applying for, or have been granted, higher protection, please post this whole form to the different postal address below: The Registrar of Companies, PO Box 4082,

#### **Further information**

For further information, please see the guidance notes on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse or email enquiries@companieshouse.gov.uk

This form is available in an alternative format. Please visit the forms page on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse

You have enclosed the correct fee.



## Jersey Financial Services Commission

Companies Registry

## COMPANIES (JERSEY) LAW 1991, as amended

# CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF A LIMITED COMPANY

Registered Number 124298

## I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT

**ONYX HOLDINGS LIMITED** 

is this day incorporated as a private company under the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991

Dated this 17 July 2017

For and on behalf of the Registrar

Juhan land

I certify this to be a copy of the original

How 08/11/2018

MARIA PATTICHI DIRECTOR

flat 74, BRYANSTON COURT, 137 George Street,

TANDEL TO THE STATE OF THE STAT

Authentication ID c459f08f-49fd-4078-b2fb-2c0c15f3511a



#### **COMPANIES (JERSEY) LAW 1991**

MEMORANDUM

AND

**ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION** 

OF

**Onyx Holdings Limited** 

a par value limited company

Company number: 124298

Incorporated the 17th day of July 2017

Certify this to be a five copy of the original

Maria Pattichi

DIRECTOR

FLAT 74, BRYANSTON COURT, 137 George Street, Landon, WIH 7HD

#### COMPANIES (JERSEY) LAW 1991 (the "Law")

#### MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

OF

#### **Onyx Holdings Limited**

(the "Company")

#### a par value limited company

#### 1. INTERPRETATION

Words and expressions contained in this Memorandum of Association have the same meanings as in the Law.

#### 2. COMPANY NAME

The name of the Company is Onyx Holdings Limited.

- 3. TYPE OF COMPANY
- 3.1 The Company is a private company.
- 3.2 The Company is a par value company.

#### 4. NUMBER OF SHARES

The share capital of the Company is GBP1000 divided into 1,000 ordinary shares at GBP1.00 each.

#### 5. LIABILITY OF MEMBERS

The flability of a member arising from the holding of a share in the Company is limited to the amount (if any) unpaid on it.

Harry 08/11/2018

We, the persons whose names and addresses are hereunto subscribed, desire to be formed into a company in pursuance of this Memorandum of Association, and we respectively agree to take the number of shares in the Company set out opposite our respective names.

Name and Address Signature of

Number of limited shares taken by Subscriber at

of Subscriber

Subscriber

JTC Corporate

Services Limited

28 Esplanade

St Helier

Jersey **JE2 3QA**  Mount one

WITNESS to the above signatories:

Mark Russell 28 Esplanade

St Helier Jersey

JE2 3QA

Batte 08/11/2018

## COMPANIES (JERSEY) LAW 1991

#### ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

## Onyx Holdings Limited

#### a par value limited company

#### **CONTENTS**

1.	INTERPRETATION	Ī
<b>2</b> .	SHARE CAPITAL	3
3.	SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT	5
<b>4</b> .	ALTERATION OF SHARE CAPITAL	5
<b>5</b> .	VARIATION OF RIGHTS	5
<b>6</b> .	REGISTER OF MEMBERS	6
<b>7</b> .	SHARE CERTIFICATES	6
8.	LIEN	7
9.	CALLS ON SHARES	8
10.	FORFEITURE OF SHARES	g
11.	TRANSFER OF SHARES	10
12.	TRANSMISSION OF SHARES	13
13.	GENERAL MEETINGS	13
14.	CLASS MEETINGS	14
15.	NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS	14
16.	PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS	14
17.	VOTES OF MEMBERS	16
18.	CORPORATE MEMBERS	17
1033483	10079/17977178v1 1 DOTTO 08/11/2018	

19.	DIRECTORS	18
20.	ALTERNATE DIRECTORS	18
21.	POWERS OF DIRECTORS	18
22.	DELEGATION OF DIRECTORS' POWERS	19
23.	APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS	19
24.	RESIGNATION, DISQUALIFICATION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS	20
25.	REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES OF DIRECTORS	20
<b>26</b> .	EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS	20
27.	DIRECTORS' INTERESTS	20
28.	PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS	22
29.	MINUTE BOOK	23
30.	SECRETARY	24
31.	THE SEAL	24
32.	AUTHENTICATION OF DOCUMENTS	25
<b>33</b> .	DIVIDENDS	25
34.	CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS	27
<b>35</b> .	ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT	28
<b>36</b> .	NOTICES	28
37.	WINDING UP	29
38.	INDEMNITY	29
39.	NON-APPLICATION OF STANDARD TABLE	29

Karialetthu 08/11/2018

#### **COMPANIES (JERSEY) LAW 1991**

#### ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

#### **Onyx Holdings Limited**

#### a par value limited company

#### 1. INTERPRETATION

- 1.1 In these Articles, unless the context or law otherwise requires, the following words and expressions shall have the meanings respectively assigned to them below:
  - 1.1.1 "these Articles" means these Articles of Association in their present form or as from time to time amended;
  - 1.1.2 "Auditors" means the auditors (if any) of the Company appointed pursuant to these Articles;
  - 1.1.3 "Bankrupt" has the meaning ascribed to it in the Interpretation (Jersey) Law, 1954;
  - 1.1.4 "Clear Days" means in relation to the period of a Notice that period excluding the day when the Notice is served or deemed to be served and the day for which it is given or on which it is to take effect;
  - 1.1.5 "Company" means the company incorporated under the Law in respect of which these Articles have been registered;
  - 1.1.6 "Directors" means the directors of the Company for the time being;
  - 1.1.7 "Holder" means in relation to shares the Member whose name is entered in the Register as the holder of the shares;
  - 1.1.8 "the Law" means the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 and any subordinate legislation from time to time made thereunder, including any statutory modifications or reenactments for the time being in force;
  - 1.1.9 "Member" means the subscribers to the Memorandum of Association of the Company and any other Person whose name is entered in the Register as the Holder of shares in the Company;
  - 1.1.10 "Month" means calendar month;
  - 1.1.11 "Notice" means a notice in Writing unless otherwise specifically stated;

He lither 08/11/2018

- 1.1.12 "Office" means the registered office of the Company;
- 1.1.13 "Officer" includes a Secretary but otherwise has the meaning ascribed to it in the Law;
- 1.1.14 "Ordinary Resolution" means a resolution of the Company in general meeting adopted by a simple majority of the votes cast at that meeting;
- 1.1.15 "Paid Up" includes credited as paid up;

•

- 1.1.16 "Persons" includes associations and bodies of persons, whether corporate or unincorporate;
- 1.1.17 "Present" in relation to general meetings of the Company and to meetings of the Holders of any class of shares includes present by attorney or by proxy or in the case of a corporate shareholder by representative;
- 1.1.18 "Register" means the register of Members required to be kept pursuant to Article 41 of the Law;
- 1.1.19 "Seal" means the common seal of the Company;
- 1.1.20 "Secretary" means any Person appointed to perform any of the duties of secretary of the Company (including an assistant or deputy secretary) and in the event of two or more Persons being appointed as joint secretaries any one or more of the Persons so appointed;
- 1.1.21 "Signed" includes a signature or representation of a signature affixed by mechanical or other means or any other means of signifying agreement permitted by law and where a document is to be signed by a company, an association or a body of Persons the word "Signed" shall be construed as including the signature of a duly authorised representative on its behalf as well as any other means by which it would normally execute the document;
- 1.1.22 "Special Resolution" means a resolution of the Company passed as a special resolution in accordance with the Law; and
- 1.1.23 "In Writing" includes written, printed, telexed, electronically transmitted or represented or reproduced by any other mode of representing or reproducing words in a visible form.
- 1.2 Save as defined herein and unless the context otherwise requires, words or expressions contained in these Articles shall bear the same meaning as in the Law but excluding any statutory modification thereof not in force when these Articles become binding on the Company.
- 1.3 In these Articles, unless the context or law otherwise requires:

Harletter 08/11/2018

- 1.3.1 words and expressions which are cognate to those defined in Article 1.1 shall be construed accordingly;
- 1.3.2 the word "may" shall be construed as permissive and the word "shall" shall be construed as imperative;
- 1.3.3 words importing the singular number only shall be construed as including the plural number and *vice versa*;
- 1.3,4 words importing the masculine gender only shall be construed as including the feminine and neuter genders;
- 1.3.5 the word "dividend" has the meaning ascribed to the word "distribution" in Article 114 of the Law;
- 1.3.6 references to enactments are to such enactments as are from time to time modified, re-enacted or consolidated and shall include any enactment made in substitution for an enactment that is repealed; and
- 1.3.7 references to a numbered Article are to the Article so numbered of these Articles.
- 1.4 The clause and paragraph headings in these Articles are for convenience only and shall not be taken into account in the construction or interpretation of these Articles.

#### 2. SHARE CAPITAL

- 2.1 The share capital of the Company is as specified in the Memorandum of Association and the shares of the Company shall have the rights and be subject to the conditions contained in these Articles.
- 2.2 Without prejudice to any special rights for the time being conferred on the Holders of any shares or class of shares (which special rights shall not be varied or abrogated except with such consent or sanction as is hereinafter provided) any share or class of shares in the capital of the Company may be issued with such preferred, deferred or other special rights or such restrictions whether in regard to dividends, return of capital, voting or otherwise as the Company may from time to time by Ordinary Resolution determine.
- 2.3 The Company may issue fractions of shares in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the Law provided that:
  - 2.3.1 a fraction of a share shall be taken into account in determining the entitlement of a Member as regards dividends or on a winding up; and
  - 2.3.2 a fraction of a share shall not entitle a Member to a vote in respect thereof.
- 2.4 Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Company may from time to time:
  - 2.4.1 issue; or

Market 08/11/2018

3

2.4.2 convert any existing non-redeemable shares (whether issued or not) into,

shares which are to be redeemed or are liable to be redeemed at the option of the Company or at the option of the Holder thereof and on such terms and in such manner as may be determined by Special Resolution.

- 2.5 Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Company may purchase its own shares (including redeemable shares) including by the purchase of depositary certificates in respect of such shares.
- 2.6 All unissued shares which the Directors propose to issue shall, unless the Company otherwise directs by Ordinary Resolution, be offered first to the Members in accordance with the following procedure:
  - 2.6.1 the shares shall be offered in proportion to the number of the existing shares held by the Members respectively;
  - 2.5.2 the offer shall be made by Notice from the Directors specifying the number of shares offered and the subscription price and limiting the period (not being less than fourteen Clear Days) within which the offer, if not accepted, will be deemed to have been declined:
  - 2.6.3 after the expiration of that period, shares declined or deemed to have been declined shall be offered to those Members (if any) who have, within that period, accepted all the shares offered to them, such offer being made in the proportions which their existing shares bear to one another;
  - 2.5.4 this further offer shall be made in like terms and in the same manner and be limited by a like period as the original offer;
  - 2.6.5 where the circumstances do not allow shares to be offered precisely in the proportions specified in this Article they shall be offered in proportions which are as close as can be achieved to such proportions;
  - 2.6.6 subject to Article 2.6.7, any shares which have not been duly accepted pursuant to the foregoing procedure and any shares released from the provisions of this Article by Ordinary Resolution shall be at the disposal of the Directors who may allot, grant options over or otherwise dispose of them to such Persons at such times and generally on such terms and conditions as they think fit;
  - 2.6.7 the Directors may not dispose of any shares pursuant to Article 2.6.6 on terms which are more favourable to the subscriber than the terms upon which they were offered to the Members.
- 2.7 The Company may apply its shares or capital money either directly or indirectly in payment of a commission, discount or allowance to a Person. Any such commission, discount or allowance may be satisfied by the payment of cash and/or by the allotment of fully or partly paid shares or in any other way.

Hotalette 08/11/2018

2.8 Except as otherwise provided by these Articles or by law, no Person shall be recognised by the Company as holding any share upon any trust and the Company shall not be bound by or be compelled in any way to recognise any equitable, contingent, future or partial interest in any share or any interest in any fraction of a share or any other right in respect of any share except an absolute right to the entirety thereof in the Holder.

#### 3. SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

- 3.1 Except as provided in Article 3.2, where the Company issues shares at a premium, the amount or value (as determined by the Directors) of any premiums shall be transferred, as and when the premiums are Paid Up, to a share premium account which shall be kept in the books of the Company in the manner required by the Law. The sums for the time being standing to the credit of the share premium account shall be applied only in accordance with the Law.
- 3.2 Where the Law permits the Company to refrain from transferring any amount to a share premium account, that amount need not be so transferred; but the Directors may if they think fit nevertheless cause all or any part of such amount to be transferred to the relevant share premium account.
- 3.3 The Company may by Ordinary Resolution transfer an amount to a share premium account of the Company from any other account of the Company (other than the capital redemption reserve or the nominal capital account).

#### 4. ALTERATION OF SHARE CAPITAL

- 4.1 The Company may by Special Resolution after its share capital as stated in the Memorandum of Association in any manner permitted by the Law.
- 4.2 Any new shares created on an increase or other alteration of share capital shall be issued upon such terms and conditions as the Company may by Ordinary Resolution determine.
- 4.3 Any capital raised by the creation of new shares shall, unless otherwise provided by the conditions of issue of the new shares, be considered as part of the original capital and the new shares shall be subject to the provisions of these Articles with reference to the payment of calls, transfer and transmission of shares, lien or otherwise applicable to the existing shares in the Company.
- 4.4 Subject to the provisions of the Law the Company may by Special Resolution reduce its capital accounts in any way.

#### 5. VARIATION OF RIGHTS

5.1 Whenever the capital of the Company is divided into different classes of shares the special rights attached to any class may (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class) be varied or abrogated either whilst the Company is a going concern or during or in contemplation of a winding up:

Hotal H. pir 08/11/2018

5

- 5.1.1 with the consent in Writing of the Holders of two-thirds of the Issued shares of that class: or
- 5.1.2 with the sanction of a Special Resolution passed at a separate meeting of the Holders of shares of that class.
- To every such separate meeting all the provisions of these Articles and of the Law relating to general meetings of the Company or to the proceedings thereat shall apply mutatis mutandis except that the necessary quorum shall be two Persons holding or representing at least one third in nominal amount of the issued shares of that class but so that if at any adjourned meeting of such Holders a quorum as above defined is not Present those Holders who are Present shall be a quorum.
- 5.3 The special rights conferred upon the Holders of any shares or class of shares issued with preferred, deferred or other special rights shall (unless otherwise expressly provided by the conditions of issue of such shares) be deemed not to be varied by the creation or issue of further shares ranking after or pari passu therewith.

#### 6. REGISTER OF MEMBERS

- 6.1 The Directors shall maintain or cause to be maintained a Register in the manner required by the Law. The Register shall be kept at the Office or at such other place in the Island of Jersey as the Directors from time to time determine. In each year the Directors shall prepare or cause to be prepared and filed an annual return containing the particulars required by the Law.
- 6.2 The Company shall not be required to enter the names of more than four joint Holders in the Register.

#### 7. SHARE CERTIFICATES

- 7.1 Every Member shall be entitled:
  - 7.1.1 without payment upon becoming the Holder of any shares to one certificate for all the shares of each class held by him and upon transferring a part only of the shares comprised in a certificate to a new certificate for the remainder of the shares so comprised; or
  - 7.1.2 upon payment of such reasonable sum for each certificate as the Directors shall from time to time determine to several certificates each for one or more of his shares of any class.
- 7.2 Every certificate shall be issued within two Months after allotment or lodgment of transfer (or within such other period as the conditions of issue shall provide) and shall be executed by the Company. A certificate may be executed:
  - 7.2.1 If the Company has a Seal, by causing a seal of the Company to be affixed to the certificate in accordance with these Articles; or

Halley 08/11/2018

7.2.2 whether or not the Company has a Seal, by the signature on behalf of the Company of either two Directors or one Director and the Secretary.

Every certificate shall further specify the shares to which it relates and the amount Paid Up thereon and if so required by the Law the distinguishing numbers of such shares.

- 7.3 The Company shall not be bound to issue more than one certificate in respect of a share held jointly by several Persons and delivery of a certificate for a share to one of several joint Holders shall be sufficient delivery to all such Holders.
- 7.4 If a share certificate shall be worn out, defaced, lost or destroyed a duplicate certificate may be issued on payment of such reasonable fee and on such terms (if any) as to evidence and indemnity and the payment of out-of-pocket expenses of the Company in relation thereto as the Directors think fit.

#### 8. LIEN

- 8.1 The Company shall have a first and paramount ilen on every share (not being a fully paid share) for all monies (whether presently payable or not) called or payable at a fixed time in respect of that share and the Company shall also have a first and paramount lien on all shares (other than fully paid shares) registered in the name of a single Member for all the debts and liabilities of such Member or his estate to the Company whether the period for the payment or discharge of the same shall have actually commenced or not and notwithstanding that the same are joint debts or liabilities of such Member or his estate and any other Person whether a Member or not. The Company's lien (if any) on a share shall extend to all dividends or other monies payable thereon or in respect thereof. The Directors may resolve that any share shall for such period as they think fit be exempt from the provisions of this Article.
- 8.2 The Company may sell in such manner as the Directors think fit any shares on which the Company has a lien but no sale shall be made unless the monies in respect of which such lien exists or some part thereof are or is presently payable nor until fourteen Clear Days have expired after a Notice stating and demanding payment of the monies presently payable and giving Notice of Intention to sell in default shall have been served on the Holder for the time being of the shares or the Person entitled thereto by reason of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of such Holder.
- 8.3 To give effect to any such sale the Directors may authorise some Person to execute an instrument of transfer of the shares sold to the purchaser thereof. The purchaser shall be registered as the Holder of the shares so transferred and he shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money nor shall his title to the shares be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the sale.
- 8.4 The net proceeds of such sale after payment of the costs of such sale shall be applied in or towards payment or satisfaction of the debt or liability in respect of which the lien exists so far as the same is presently payable and any residue shall (subject to a like lien for debts or liabilities not presently payable as existed upon the shares prior to the sale) be paid to the Person entitled to the shares at the time of the sale.

Hotalth 08/11/2018

7

#### 9. CALLS ON SHARES

- 9.1 The Directors may subject to the provisions of these Articles and to any conditions of allotment from time to time make calls upon the Members in respect of any monies unpaid on their shares (whether on account of the nominal value of the shares or by way of premium) and each Member shall (subject to being given at least fourteen Clear Days' Notice specifying the time or times and place of payment) pay to the Company at the time or times and place so specified the amount called on his shares.
- 9.2 A call may be required to be paid by instalments.
- 9.3 A call may before receipt by the Company of any sum due thereunder be revoked in whole or in part and payment of a call may be postponed in whole or in part.
- 9.4 A Person upon whom a call is made shall remain liable for calls made upon him notwithstanding the subsequent transfer of the shares in respect whereof the call was made.
- 9.5 A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Directors authorising the call was passed.
- 9.6 The joint Holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all calls and all other payments to be made in respect of such share.
- 9.7 If a sum called in respect of a share is not paid before or on the day appointed for payment thereof the Person from whom the sum is due may be required to pay interest on the sum from the day appointed for payment thereof to the time of actual payment at a rate determined by the Directors but the Directors shall be at liberty to waive payment of such interest wholly or in part.
- 9.8 Any sum which by or pursuant to the terms of issue of a share becomes payable upon allotment or at any fixed date whether on account of the nominal value of the share or by way of premium shall for the purposes of these Articles be deemed to be a call duly made and payable on the date on which by or pursuant to the terms of issue the same becomes payable and in case of non-payment all the relevant provisions of these Articles as to payment of interest, forfeiture, surrender or otherwise shall apply as if such sum had become due and payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.
- 9.9 The Directors may on the issue of shares differentiate between the Holders as to the amount of calls to be paid and the times of payment.
- 9.10 The Directors may if they think fit receive from any Member an advance of monies which have not yet been called on his shares or which have not yet fallen due for payment. Such advance payments shall, to their extent, extinguish the liability in respect of which they are paid. The Company may pay interest on any such advance, at such rate as the Directors think fit, for the period covering the date of payment to the date (the "Due Date") when the monies would have been due had they not been paid in advance. For the purposes of entitlement to dividends, monies paid in advance of a call or instalment shall not be treated as paid until the Due Date.

Man Peters 08/11/2018

#### 10. FORFEITURE OF SHARES

- 10.1 If a Member fails to pay any call or instalment of a call on or before the day appointed for payment thereof the Directors may at any time thereafter during such time as any part of such call or instalment remains unpaid serve a Notice on him requiring payment of so much of the call or instalment as is unpaid together with any interest which may have accrued and any costs, charges and expenses which may have been incurred by the Company by reason of such non-payment.
- 10.2 The Notice shall name a further day (not earlier than the expiration of fourteen Clear Days from the date of service of such Notice) on or before which the payment required by the Notice is to be made and the place where payment is to be made and shall state that in the event of non-payment at or before the time appointed and at the place appointed the shares in respect of which the call was made will be liable to be forfeited.
- 10.3 If the requirements of any such Notice as aforesaid are not complied with any share in respect of which such Notice has been given may at any time thereafter before payment of all calls and interest due in respect thereof has been made be forfeited by a resolution of the Directors to that effect and such forfeiture shall include all dividends which shall have been declared on the forfeited shares and not actually paid before the forfeiture.
- 10.4 When any share has been forfeited in accordance with these Articles, Notice of the forfeiture shall forthwith be given to the Holder of the share or the Person entitled to the share by transmission as the case may be and an entry of such Notice having been given and of the forfeiture with the date thereof shall forthwith be made in the Register opposite to the entry of the share but no forfeiture shall be invalidated in any manner by any omission or neglect to give such Notice or to make such entry as aforesaid.
- 10.5 The Directors may, at any time after serving a Notice in accordance with Article 10.1, accept from the Member concerned the surrender of such shares as are the subject of the Notice, without the need otherwise to comply with the provisions of Articles 10.1 to 10.4. Any such shares shall be surrendered immediately and irrevocably upon the Member delivering to the Company the share certificate for the shares and such surrender shall also constitute a surrender of all dividends declared on the surrendered shares but not actually paid before the surrender. The Company shall, upon such surrender forthwith make an entry in the Register of the surrender of the share with the date thereof but no surrender shall be invalidated in any manner by any omission or neglect to make such entry as aforesaid.
- 10.6 A forfeited or surrendered share shall become the property of the Company and may be sold, re-allotted or otherwise disposed of either to the Person who was before forfeiture or surrender the Holder thereof or entitled thereto or to any other Person upon such terms and in such manner as the Directors think fit and at any time before a sale, re-allotment or other disposition the forfeiture or surrender may be cancelled on such terms as the Directors think fit. Where for the purposes of its disposal a forfeited or surrendered share is to be transferred to any Person the Directors may authorise some Person to execute an instrument of transfer of the share to that Person.

ballho 08/11/2018

- 10.7 A Member whose shares have been forfeited or surrendered shall cause to be a Member in respect of the forfeited or surrendered shares and shall (if he has not done so already) surrender to the Company for cancellation the certificate for the shares forfeited or surrendered. Notwithstanding the forfeiture or the surrender such Member shall remain liable to pay to the Company all monies which at the date of forfeiture or surrender were presently payable by him in respect of those shares with interest thereon at the rate at which interest was payable before the forfeiture or surrender or at such rate as the Directors may determine from the date of forfeiture or surrender until payment, provided that the Directors may waive payment wholly or in part or enforce payment without any allowance for the value of the shares at the time of forfeiture or surrender or for any consideration received on their disposal.
- A declaration under oath by a Director or the Secretary (or by an Officer of a corporate Secretary) that a share has been duly forfeited or surrendered on a specified date shall be conclusive evidence of the facts therein stated as against all Persons claiming to be entitled to the share. The declaration and the receipt of the Company for the consideration (if any) given for the share on the sale re-allotment or disposal thereof together with the certificate for the share delivered to a purchaser or allottee thereof shall (subject to the execution of an instrument of transfer if the same be so required) constitute good title to the share. The Person to whom the share is sold, re-allotted or disposed of shall be registered as the Holder of the share and shall not be bound to see to the application of the consideration (if any) nor shall his title to the share be affected by any irregularity in or invalidity of the proceedings in respect of the forfeiture, surrender, sale, re-allotment or disposal of the share.

#### 11. TRANSFER OF SHARES

- 11.1 Save as otherwise permitted under the provisions of the Law, all transfers of shares shall be effected using an instrument of transfer.
- 11.2 The instrument of transfer of any share shall be in Writing in any usual common form or any form approved by the Directors.
- 11.3 The instrument of transfer of any share shall be Signed by or on behalf of the transferor and in the case of an unpaid or partly paid share by the transferee. The transferor shall be deemed to remain the Holder of the share until the name of the transferee is entered in the Register in respect thereof.
- 11.4 Subject to Article 11.4.10, no Member wishing to transfer all or any of his shares (the "Offeror") shall transfer such shares (the "Offer Shares") without first complying with the following procedure:
  - 11.4.1 The Offeror shall offer the Offer Shares to the other Holders of shares of the same class as the Offer Shares first by Notice (the "Sale Notice") to the Secretary indicating his wish to sell the Offer Shares and the number of shares involved.
  - 11.4.2 The Secretary shall within one week following receipt of the Sale Notice acknowledge receipt and give Notice of the Sale Notice to the other Holders of shares of the same class as the Offer Shares.

Hail 11 08/11/2018

- 11.4.3 The Secretary shall within two weeks following receipt of the Sale Notice require the Auditors (if there shall be any) and falling which such firm of chartered accountants as the Directors shall have nominated for such purpose (the "Valuers") within a period of six weeks to issue a certificate certifying the fair value (the "Fair Value") of the Offer Shares (the "Valuation Certificate"). In valuing the Offer Shares the Valuers shall assume that the Offer Shares can be transferred without restriction and shall take account of the business as a going concern of the Company. The Valuers shall be deemed to be acting as experts and not as arbitrators and the Valuation Certificate shall be deemed to be conclusive and final and binding save only in the case of manifest error. The Valuation Certificate shall be prepared at the cost of the Offeror.
- 11.4.4 Within one week following receipt of the Valuation Certificate the Secretary shall offer the Offer Shares for sale at the Fair Value by Notice (the "Offer Notices") to the other Holders of shares of the same class as the Offer Shares pro rate according to the proportion which the nominal value of the shares of the same class as the Offer Shares held by them bears to the total nominal value of the shares of the same class as the Offer Shares less the nominal value of the Offer Shares.
- 11.4.5 Within two weeks following the Secretary issuing the Offer Notices the persons to whom the Offer Notices have been issued may serve written Notices ("Acceptance Notices") upon the Secretary Indicating his or their willingness to acquire all or any of the Offer Shares offered to him or them at the price indicated in the Offer Notices.
- 11.4.6 Within four weeks following the Secretary issuing the Offer Notices the Secretary shall offer all of those Offer Shares in respect of which Acceptance Notices shall not have been received (the "Available Shares") for sale at the Fair Value by Notice (the "Second Offer Notice") to each of those Holders of shares of the same class as the Offer Shares who shall have served Acceptance Notices.
- 11.4.7 Within two weeks following the Secretary issuing the Second Offer Notices the Persons to whom the Second Offer Notices have been issued may serve written Notices ("Second Acceptance Notices") upon the Secretary indicating his or their willingness to acquire all or any of the Available Shares offered to him or them at the price indicated in the Second Offer Notices. In the event that Second Acceptance Notices shall be served in respect of more shares than shall comprise the Available Shares the Available Shares shall be divided between those Persons serving Second Acceptance Notices pro rata according to the proportion which the nominal value of the shares of the same class as the Offer Shares held by each of them bears to the total nominal value of the shares of the same class as the Offer Shares held by all such Persons serving Second Acceptance Notices.
- 11.4.8 The transfers of Offer Shares shall be completed in usual form upon payment of the Fair Value which shall take place no later than four weeks after the date upon which the relevant Acceptance Notice or Second Acceptance Notice as the case may be shall be served upon the Secretary.

topial 48/11/2018

- 11.4.9 In connection with this Article 11.4, the times indicated shall be of the essence and in the event of the times not being adhered to or if no Acceptance Notices or Second Acceptance Notices are received by the Secretary by the date due the Offeror shall be at liberty to transfer the shares which are the subject of the Offer Notices or Second Offer Notices as the case may be to a third party at any valuation and on any terms he feels appropriate subject to the provisions of these Articles.
- 11.4.10 With the consent in Writing of all the Holders for the time being of shares of the same class as the Offer Shares the provisions of this Article 11.4 may be waived or varied.
- 11.5 Without prejudice to the provisions of Article 11.4, the Directors may in their absolute discretion and without assigning any reason therefor refuse to register the transfer of a share including without limitation a transfer of shares to a Person of whom they do not approve and a transfer of a share on which the Company has a lien.
- 11.6 The Directors may also refuse to register the transfer of a share unless the instrument of transfer:
  - 11.6.1 is lodged at the Office or at such other place as the Directors may appoint accompanied by the certificate for the shares to which it relates and such other evidence as the Directors may reasonably require to show the right of the transferor to make the transfer:
  - 11.6.2 is in respect of only one class of shares; and
  - 11.6.3 is in favour of not more than four transferees.
- 11.7 If the Directors refuse to register a transfer of a share they shall within two Months after the date on which the instrument of transfer was lodged with the Company send to the proposed transferor and transferoe Notice of the refusal.
- 11.8 All instruments of transfer relating to transfers of shares which are registered shall be retained by the Company but any instrument of transfer relating to transfers of shares which the Directors decline to register shall (except in any case of fraud) be returned to the Person depositing the same.
- The registration of transfers of shares or of transfers of any class of shares may be suspended at such times and for such periods as the Directors may determine.
- 11.10 Unless otherwise decided by the Directors in their sole discretion no fee shall be charged in respect of the registration of any instrument of transfer or other document relating to or affecting the title to any share.
- 11.11 In respect of any allotment of any share the Directors shall have the same right to decline to approve the registration of any renounces of any allottee as if the application to allot and the renunciation were a transfer of a share under these Articles.

bouldles 08/11/2018

•

#### 12. TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

- 12.1 In the case of the death of a Member the survivor or survivors where the deceased was a joint Holder and the executors or administrators of the deceased where he was a sole or only surviving Holder shall be the only Persons recognised by the Company as having any title to his interest in the shares but nothing in this Article shall release the estate of a deceased joint Holder from any liability in respect of any share which had been jointly held by him.
- 12.2 Any Person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a Member may upon such evidence as to his title being produced as may from time to time be required by the Directors and subject as hereinafter provided elect either to be registered himself as the Holder of the share or to have some Person nominated by him registered as the Holder thereof.
- 12.3 If the Person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered himself he shall deliver or send to the Company a Notice Signed by him stating that he so elects. If he shall elect to have another Person registered he shall testify his election by an instrument of transfer of the share in favour of that Person. All the limitations restrictions and provisions of these Articles relating to the right to transfer and the registration of transfers of shares shall be applicable to any such Notice or Instrument of transfer as aforesaid as if it were an instrument of transfer executed by the Member and the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of the Member had not occurred.
- A Person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a Member shall be entitled to the same dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were the Holder of the share except that he shall not before being registered as the Holder of the share be entitled in respect of it to exercise any right conferred by membership in relation to meetings of the Company provided always that the Directors may at any time give Notice requiring any such Person to elect either to be registered himself or to transfer the share and if the Notice is not complied with within one Month such Person shall be deemed to have so elected to be registered himself and all the restrictions on the transfer and transmission of shares contained in these Articles shall apply to such election.

#### 13. GENERAL MEETINGS

- 13.1 Unless the Company by Special Resolution otherwise determines, the Company shall not be required to hold annual general meetings.
- 13.2 The Directors may whenever they think fit and upon a requisition of Members pursuant to the provisions of the Law the Directors shall forthwith proceed to convene a general meeting for a date not later than two Months after the receipt of the requisition. If there are not sufficient Directors to convene the general meeting any Director or any Member may convene such a meeting.
- 13.3 At any general meeting called pursuant to a requisition unless such meeting is called by the Directors no business other than that stated in the requisition as the objects of the meeting shall be transacted.

burlish 08/11/2018

#### 14. CLASS MEETINGS

Save as otherwise provided in these Articles, all the provisions of these Articles and of the Law relating to general meetings of the Company and to the proceedings thereat shall apply *mutatis mutandis* to every class meeting. A Director who is entitled to receive Notice of general meetings of the Company in accordance with Article 15.4 shall also be entitled, unless he has notified the Secretary in Writing of his contrary desire, to receive Notice of all class meetings. At any class meeting the Holders of shares of the relevant class shall have one vote in respect of each share of that class held by them.

#### 15. NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

- 15.1 At least fourteen Clear Days' Notice shall be given of every general meeting, including without limitation, every general meeting called for the passing of a Special Resolution.
- 15.2 A meeting of the Company shall notwithstanding that it is called by shorter Notice than that specified in Article 15.1 be deemed to have been duty called if it is so agreed:
  - 15.2.1 In the case of a meeting called as the annual general meeting by all the Members entitled to attend and vote thereat; and
  - 15.2.2 in the case of any other meeting by a majority in number of the Members having a right to attend and vote at the meeting being a majority together holding not less than the minimum percentage of voting rights prescribed by the Law.
- 15.3 Every Notice shall specify the place the day and the time of the meeting and the general nature of the business to be transacted and in the case of an annual general meeting shall specify the meeting as such.
- Subject to the provisions of these Articles and to any restrictions imposed on any shares, Notice of every general meeting shall be given to all the Members, to all Persons entitled to a share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a Member, to the Auditors (if any) and to every Director who has notified the Secretary in Writing of his desire to receive Notice of general meetings.
- 15.5 In every Notice calling a meeting of the Company there shall appear with reasonable prominence a statement that a Member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote instead of him and that a proxy need not also be a Member.
- 15.6 The accidental omission to give Notice of a meeting to or the non-receipt of Notice of a meeting by any Person entitled to receive Notice shall not invalidate the proceedings at that meeting.

#### 16. PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

16.1 The business of an annual general meeting shall be to receive and consider the accounts of the Company and the reports of the Directors and Auditors (if any), to elect Directors (if proposed), to elect Auditors (if proposed) and fix their remuneration, to sanction a dividend (if thought fit so to do) and to transact any other business of which Notice has been given.

to felle 08/11/2018

- No business shall be transacted at any general meeting except the adjournment of the meeting unless a quorum of Members is Present at the time when the meeting proceeds to business. Such quorum shall consist of not less than two Members Present but so that not less than two individuals will constitute the quorum, provided that if at any time all of the issued shares in the Company are held by one Member such quorum shall consist of that Member Present.
- 16.3 If a Member is by any means in communication with one or more other Members so that each Member participating in the communication can hear what is said by any other of them each Member so participating in the communication is deemed to be Present at a meeting with the other Members so participating notwithstanding that all the Members so participating are not Present together in the same place. A meeting at which any or all of the Members participate as aforesaid shall be deemed to be a general meeting of the Company for the purposes of these Articles notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles and all of the provisions of these Articles and of the Law relating to general meetings of the Company and to the proceedings thereat shall apply mutatis mutandis to every such meeting.
- 16.4 If within half-an-hour from the time appointed for the meeting a quorum is not Present or if during the meeting a quorum ceases to be Present the meeting shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next week at the same time and place or to such other time and place as the Directors shall determine and if at such adjourned meeting a quorum is not Present within half-an-hour from the time appointed for the holding of the meeting those Members Present shall constitute a quorum.
- 16.5 The chairman (if any) of the Directors shall preside as chairman at every general meeting of the Company or if there is no such chairman or if he shall not be Present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for the holding of the meeting or is unwilling to act, the Directors shall select one of their number to be chairman of the meeting.
- 16.6 If at any meeting no Director is willing to act as chairman or if no Director is Present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the Members Present shall choose one of their number to be chairman of the meeting.
- 16.7 The chairman may with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is Present (and shall if so directed by the meeting) adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to place but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took place. When a meeting is adjourned for thirty days or more, Notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of the original meeting. Save as aforesaid it shall not be necessary to give any Notice of any adjourned meeting or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.
- At every general meeting, the chairman may determine the method for casting and counting votes, being such method as appears to him to be practicable and reasonable in the circumstances. The chairman's decision in this regard shall be final unless an objection is raised by a Member Present before or on the declaration of the result of the vote. In the event that such an objection is raised, each resolution to which it relates shall be put to the vote or (as the case may be) put again to the vote according to a procedure, being consistent in all

boundelle 08/11/2017

respects with the voting rights of the Members Present, determined by a majority of Members Present who are entitled to vote thereon and the result of the vote shall be determined accordingly.

- 16.9 In the event of an equality of votes at any general meeting the chairman shall not be entitled to a second or casting vote.
- 16.10 Anything which may be done at a general meeting of the Company (save for the passing of a resolution removing the Auditors) may be done by a resolution in Writing passed by all the Members who, at the date when the resolution is deemed passed, would be entitled to vote on the resolution if it were proposed at a general meeting. A resolution in Writing may consist of several instruments in the same form each Signed by or on behalf of one or more Members. A resolution in Writing may be sent or submitted to Members in hard copy or electronic form or in such other manner as the Directors may resolve. A resolution in Writing shall be deemed to be passed when all the relevant Members have in accordance with the Law signified agreement to the resolution in hard copy or electronic form or in such other manner as the Directors may resolve.

## 17. VOTES OF MEMBERS

- 17.1 Subject to any special rights restrictions or prohibitions as regards voting for the time being attached to any shares as may be specified in the terms of issue thereof or these Articles, every Member Present shall have one vote for each share of which he is the Holder.
- 17.2 In the case of joint Holders of any share such Persons shall not have the right of voting individually in respect of such share but shall elect one of their number to represent them and to vote whether personally or by proxy in their name. In default of such election the Person whose name appears first in order in the Register in respect of such share shall be the only Person entitled to vote in respect thereof.
- 17.3 A Member in respect of whom an order has been made by any court having jurisdiction (whether in the Island of Jersey or elsewhere) in matters concerning legal incapacity or interdiction may vote by his attorney, curator, receiver or other Person authorised in that behalf appointed by that court and any such attorney, curator, receiver or other Person may vote by proxy. Evidence to the satisfaction of the Directors of the authority of such attorney, curator, receiver or other Person may be required by the Directors prior to any vote being exercised by such attorney, curator, receiver or other Person.
- 17.4 No Member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless all calls or other sums presently payable by him in respect of shares in the Company of which he is Holder or one of the joint Holders have been paid.
- 17.5 No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is given or tendered and every vote not disallowed at such meeting shall be valid for all purposes. Any such objection made in due time shall be referred to the chairman of the meeting whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

Hornfaller 08/11/2018

- 17.6 The Directors may at the expense of the Company send by post or otherwise to the Members instruments of proxy (with or without provision for their return prepaid) for use at any general meeting or at any separate meeting of the Holders of any class of shares of the Company either in blank or nominating in the alternative any one or more of the Directors or any other Persons. If for the purpose of any meeting invitations to appoint as proxy a Person or one or more of a number of Persons specified in the invitations are issued at the Company's expense they shall be issued to all (and not to some only) of the Members entitled to be sent a Notice of the meeting and to vote thereat by proxy.
- 17.7 The instrument appointing a proxy shalf be in Writing in any common form or as approved by the Directors and shall be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in Writing or if the appointor is a corporation either under seal or under the hand of a duly authorised officer, attorney or other representative. A proxy need not be a Member.
- 17.8 The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is Signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at the Office or at such other place as is specified for that purpose by the Notice convening the meeting not less than forty-eight hours before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the Person named in the instrument proposes to vote. In calculating the period referred to in the foregoing of this Article 17.8, no account shall be taken of any part of a day that is not a "working day" within the meaning of Article 96(4B) of the Law. An instrument of proxy which is not deposited in the manner so required shall be valid only if it is approved by all the other Members who are Present at the meeting.
- 17.9 Unless the contrary is stated thereon the instrument appointing a proxy shall be as valid as well for any adjournment of the meeting as for the meeting to which it relates.
- 17.10 A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the principal or revocation of the proxy or of the authority under which the proxy was executed provided that no Notice in Writing of such death, insanity or revocation shall have been received by the Company at the Office before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which such vote is cast.

## 18. CORPORATE MEMBERS

- Subject to the provisions of the Law, any body corporate which is a Member may by resolution of its directors or other governing body authorise such Person(s) as it thinks fit to act as its representative(s) at any meeting of Members (or of any class of Members) and the Person(s) so authorised shall be entitled to exercise on behalf of the body corporate which he/they represent(s) the same powers as that body corporate could exercise if it were an individual.
- 18.2 Where (a) Person(s) is/are authorised to represent a body corporate at a general meeting of the Company the Directors or the chairman of the meeting may require him/them to produce a certified copy of the resolution from which he/they derive(s) his/their authority.

Boxelthy 08/11/2018

#### 19. DIRECTORS

- 19.1 The Company may by Ordinary Resolution determine the maximum and minimum number of Directors and unless and until otherwise so determined, and subject to the provisions of the Law, the minimum number of Directors shall be one.
- 19.2 A Director need not be a Member but provided he has notified the Secretary in Writing of his desire to receive Notice of general meetings in accordance with Article 15.4 he shall be entitled to receive Notice of any general meeting and, subject to Article 14, all separate meetings of the Holders of any class of shares in the Company. Whether or not a Director is entitled to receive such Notice, he may nevertheless attend and speak at any such meeting.

#### 20. ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

- 20.1 Any Director (other than an alternate Director) may at his sole discretion and at any time and from time to time appoint any other Director or any other Person (other than one disqualified or ineligible by law to act as a director of a company) as an alternate Director to attend and vote in his place at any meetings of Directors at which he is not personally present. Each Director shall be at liberty to appoint under this Article more than one alternate Director provided that only one such alternate Director may at any one time act on behalf of the Director by whom he has been appointed.
- An alternate Director while he holds office as such shall be entitled to receive Notice (which need not be in Writing) of all meetings of Directors and of all meetings of committees of Directors of which his appointor is a member and to attend and to exercise all the rights and privileges of his appointor at all such meetings at which his appointor is not personally present and generally to perform all the functions of his appointor as a Director in his absence.
- 20.3 An alternate Director shall *loso facto* vacate office if and when his appointment expires or the Director who appointed him ceases to be a Director of the Company or removes the alternate Director from office by Notice under his hand served upon the Company.
- An alternate Director shall be entitled to be paid all travelling and other expenses reasonably incurred by him in attending meetings. The remuneration (if any) of an alternate Director shall be payable out of the remuneration payable to the Director appointing him as may be agreed between them.
- 20.5 Where a Director acts as an alternate Director for another Director he shall be entitled to vote for such other Director as well as on his own account, but no Director shall at any meeting be entitled to act as alternate Director for more than one Director.
- 20.6 A Director who is also appointed an alternate Director shall be considered as two Directors for the purpose of making a quorum of Directors when such quorum shall exceed two.

## 21. POWERS OF DIRECTORS

21.1 The business of the Company shall be managed by the Directors who may pay all expenses incurred in promoting and registering the Company and may exercise all such powers of the

Novalth 08/11/2018

Company as are not by the Law or these Articles required to be exercised by the Company in general meeting.

- 21.2 The Directors' powers shall be subject to the provisions of these Articles, to the provisions of the Law and to such regulations (being not inconsistent with the aforesaid regulations or provisions) as may be prescribed by the Company in general meeting but no regulations made by the Company in general meeting shall invalidate any prior act of the Directors which would have been valid if such regulations had not been made.
- 21.3 The Directors may by power of attorney, mandate or otherwise appoint any Person to be the agent of the Company for such purposes and on such conditions as they determine including authority for the agent to delegate all or any of his powers.

#### 22. DELEGATION OF DIRECTORS' POWERS

- 22.1 The Directors may delegate any of their powers to committees consisting of such Director or Directors or such other Persons as they think fit. Any committee so formed shall in the exercise of the powers so delegated conform to any regulations that may be imposed on it by the Directors.
- 22.2 The meetings and proceedings of any such committee consisting of two or more Persons shall be governed by the provisions of these Articles regulating the meetings and proceedings of the Directors so far as the same are applicable and are not superseded by any regulations made by the Directors under this Article.

### 23. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

- 23.1 Where these Articles are adopted by the Company either upon incorporation or for any other reason prior to the appointment of the first Directors, the first Directors of the Company shall be appointed in Writing by the subscribers to the Memorandum of Association or by a majority of them. Any Director so appointed, and any Director duty holding office prior to the adoption of these Articles, shall continue to hold office until he resigns or is disqualified or removed in accordance with the provisions hereof.
- 23.2 The Directors shall have power at any time and from time to time to appoint any Person (other than one disqualified or ineligible by law to act as a director of a company) to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors provided that the appointment does not cause the number of Directors to exceed any number fixed by or in accordance with these Articles as the maximum number of Directors. Any Director so appointed shall hold office until he resigns or is disqualified or removed in accordance with the provisions of these Articles.
- 23.3 The Company may by Ordinary Resolution:
  - 23.3.1 appoint any Person (other than one disqualified or ineligible by law to act as a director of a company) as a Director; and
  - 23.3.2 remove any Director from office.

Honoldh 08/11/2018

23.4 The Company shall keep or cause to be kept a register of particulars with regard to its Directors in the manner required by the Law.

## 24. RESIGNATION, DISQUALIFICATION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

- 24.1 The office of a Director shall be vacated if the Director:
  - 24.1.1 resigns his office by Notice to the Company;
  - 24.1.2 ceases to be a Director by virtue of any provision of the Law or he becomes prohibited or disqualified by law from being a Director;
  - 24.1.3 becomes Bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his creditors generally;
  - 24.1.4 becomes of unsound mind; or
  - 24.1.5 is removed from office by Ordinary Resolution passed pursuant to Article 23.3.2.

#### 25. REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES OF DIRECTORS

- 25.1 The Directors shall be entitled to such remuneration as the Directors may determine subject to any limitation as the Company may by Ordinary Resolution determine.
- 25.2 The Directors shall be paid out of the funds of the Company their travelling hotel and other expenses properly and necessarily incurred by them in connection with their attendance at meetings of the Directors or Members or otherwise in connection with the discharge of their duties.

## 26. **EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS**

- 26.1 The Directors may from time to time appoint one or more of their number to the office of managing director or to any other executive office under the Company on such terms and for such periods as they may determine.
- 26.2 The appointment of any Director to any executive office shall be subject to termination if he ceases to be a Director but without prejudice to any claim for damages for breach of any contract of service between him and the Company.
- 26.3 The Directors may entrust to and confer upon a Director holding any executive office any of the powers exercisable by the Directors upon such terms and conditions and with such restrictions as they think fit and either collaterally with or to the exclusion of their own powers and may from time to time revoke withdraw alter or vary all or any of such powers.

## 27. DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

27.1 A Director who has, directly or indirectly, an Interest in a transaction entered into or proposed to be entered into by the Company or by a subsidiary of the Company which to a material

Hori States 08/11/2018

extent conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the Company and of which he is aware, shall disclose to the Company the nature and extent of his interest.

#### 27.2 For the purposes of Article 27.1:

- 27.2.1 the disclosure shall be made at the first meeting of the Directors at which the transaction is considered after the Director concerned becomes aware of the circumstances giving rise to his duty to make it or, if for any reason he fails to do so at such meeting, as soon as practical after the meeting, by Notice in Writing delivered to the Secretary;
- 27.2.2 the Secretary, where the disclosure is made to him shall inform the Directors that it has been made and shall in any event table the Notice of the disclosure at the next meeting after it is made;
- 27.2.3 a disclosure to the Company by a Director in accordance with Article 27.1 that he is to be regarded as interested in a transaction with a specified Person is sufficient disclosure of his interest in any such transaction entered into after the disclosure is made; and
- 27.2.4 any disclosure made at a meeting of the Directors shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.
- 27.3 Subject to the provisions of the Law, a Director may hold any other office or place of profit under the Company (other than the office of Auditor) in conjunction with his office of Director for such period and on such terms as to tenure of office, remuneration and otherwise as the Directors may determine.
- 27.4 Subject to the provisions of the Law, and provided that he has disclosed to the Company the nature and extent of any of his material interests in accordance with Article 27.1, a Director notwithstanding his office:
  - 27.4.1 may be a party to or otherwise interested in any transaction or arrangement with the Company or in which the Company is otherwise interested;
  - 27.4.2 may be a director or other officer of or employed by or a party to any transaction or arrangement with or otherwise interested in any body corporate promoted by the Company or in which the Company is otherwise interested;
  - 27.4.3 shall not by reason of his office be accountable to the Company for any benefit which he derives from any such office or employment or from any such transaction or arrangement or from any interest in any such body corporate and no such transaction or arrangement shall be liable to be avoided on the ground of any such interest or benefit; and
  - 27.4.4 may act by himself or his firm in a professional capacity for the Company and he or his firm shall be entitled to remuneration for professional services as if he were not a Director.

Hambality 08/11/2018

#### 28. PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

- 28.1 The Directors may meet together for the despatch of business adjourn and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit.
- 28.2 A Director may at any time and the Secretary at the request of a Director shall summon a meeting of the Directors by giving to each Director and alternate Director not less than twenty-four hours' Notice of the meeting provided that any meeting may be convened at shorter Notice and in such manner as each Director or his alternate Director shall approve and provided further that unless otherwise resolved by the Directors Notices of Directors' meetings need not be in Writing.
- 28.3 Questions arising at any meeting shall be determined by a majority of votes.
- 28.4 In the case of an equality of votes the chairman shall not have a second or casting vote.
- 28.5 A Director who is also an alternate Director shall be entitled to a separate vote for each Director for whom he acts as alternate in addition to his own vote.
- 28.6 A meeting of the Directors at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all powers and discretions for the time being exercisable by the Directors. Wherever two or more Directors hold office the quorum necessary for the transaction of the business of the Directors shall be two or such greater number as may be fixed by the Directors. Where the quorum is two or more Directors, an alternate Director shall be counted in a quorum but so that not less than two individuals will constitute the quorum. Where only one Director is in office he may, subject to Article 28.9, exercise alone all the powers and discretions for the time being exercisable by the Directors.
- 28.7 A Director notwithstanding his interest may be counted in the quorum present at any meeting at which any contract or arrangement in which he is interested is considered and, provided he has made the disclosure required by Article 27.1, he may vote in respect of any such contract or arrangement except those concerning his own terms of appointment.
- 28.8 If a Director is by any means in communication with one or more other Directors so that each Director participating in the communication can hear what is said by any other of them each Director so participating in the communication is deemed to be present at a meeting with the other Directors so participating notwithstanding that all the Directors so participating are not present together in the same place.
- 28.9 The continuing Directors or Director may act notwithstanding any vacancies in their number but if the number of Directors is less than the number fixed as the quorum or becomes less than the number required by the Law the continuing Directors or Director may act only for the purpose of filling vacancies or of calling a general meeting of the Company. If there are no Directors or no Director is able or willing to act then any Member or the Secretary may summon a general meeting for the purpose of appointing Directors.

Haisafelth 08/11/2018

- 28.10 The Directors may from time to time elect from their number, and remove, a chairman and/or deputy chairman and/or vice-chairman of the board of Directors and determine the period for which they are to hold office.
- 28.11 The chairman, or in his absence the deputy chairman, or in his absence the vice-chairman, shall preside at all meetings of the Directors but if no such chairman, deputy chairman or vice-chairman be elected or if at any meeting the chairman, deputy chairman or vice-chairman be not present within five minutes after the time appointed for holding the same, the Directors present may choose one of their number to be the chairman of the meeting.
- 28.12 A resolution in Writing Signed by all the Directors entitled to receive Notice of a meeting of Directors or of a committee of Directors shall be valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Directors or of a committee of Directors duly convened and held and may consist of several documents in like form each Signed by one or more Directors but a resolution Signed by an alternate Director need not also be Signed by his appointor and if it is Signed by a Director who has appointed an alternate Director it need not be Signed by the alternate Director in that capacity.
- 28.13 All acts done bone fide by any meeting of Directors or of a committee appointed by the Directors or by any Person acting as a Director shall notwithstanding that it is afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of any such Director or committee or Person acting as aforesaid or that they or any of them were disqualified or had vacated office or were not entitled to vote be as valid as if every such Person had been duly appointed and was qualified and had continued to be a Director or a member of a committee appointed by the Directors and had been entitled to vote.

## 29. MINUTE BOOK

- 29.1 The Directors shall cause to be entered in books kept for the purpose:
  - 29.1.1 the minutes of all proceedings at general meetings, class meetings, Directors' meetings and meetings of committees appointed by the Directors;
  - 29.1.2 all resolutions in Writing passed in accordance with these Articles;
  - 29.1.3 every memorandum in Writing of a Sole Member-Director Contract (as defined in Article 29.3) which is drawn up pursuant to Article 29.3;
  - 29.1.4 every record in Writing of a Sole Member's Decision (as defined in Article 29.4); and
  - 29.1.5 all such other records as are from time to time required by the Law or, in the opinion of the Directors, by good practice to be minuted or retained in the books of the Company.
- 29.2 Any minutes of a meeting if purporting to be Signed by the chairman of the meeting at which the proceedings were had or by the chairman of the next succeeding meeting shall be conclusive evidence of the proceedings.

Honolita 08/11/2018

- 29.3 This Article 29.3 applies where the Company has only one Member and that Member is also a Director. If the Company, acting otherwise than in the ordinary course of its business, enters into a contract with such Member (a "Sole Member-Director Contract") and that Sole Member-Director Contract is not in Writing, the terms thereof shall be:
  - 29.3.1 set out in a memorandum in Writing;
  - 29.3.2 recorded in the minutes of the first meeting of the Directors following the making of the contract: or
  - 29.3.3 recorded in such other manner or on such other occasion as may for the time being be permitted or required by the Law.
- This Article 29.4 applies where the Company has only one Member and that Member has taken a decision which may be taken by the Company in general meeting and which has effect in law as if agreed by the Company in general meeting (a "Sole Member's Decision").

  A Sole Member's Decision may (without limitation) be taken by way of resolution in Writing but if not so taken, the sole Member shall provide the Company with a record in Writing of his decision as soon as practicable thereafter.

#### 30. SECRETARY

- 30.1 The Secretary shall be appointed by the Directors for such term at such remuneration and upon such conditions as they may think fit and any Secretary so appointed may be removed by the Directors.
- 30.2 Anything required or authorised to be done by or to the Secretary may if the office is vacant or there is for any other reason no secretary capable of acting be done by or to any assistant or deputy secretary or if there is no assistant or deputy secretary capable of acting by or to any Person authorised generally or specifically in that behalf by the Directors.
- 30.3 The Company shall keep or cause to be kept at the Office a register of particulars with regard to its Secretary in the manner required by the Law.

## 31. THE SEAL

- 31.1 The Directors may determine that the Company shall have a Seal. Subject to the Law, if the Company has a Seal the Directors may determine that it shall also have an official seal for use outside of the Island and an official seal for sealing securities issued by the Company or for sealing documents creating or evidencing securities so issued.
- 31.2 The Directors shall provide for the safe custody of all seals and no seal shall be used except by the authority of a resolution of the Directors or of a committee of the Directors authorised in that behalf by the Directors.
- 31.3 The Directors may from time to time make such regulations as they think fit determining the Persons and the number of such Persons who shall sign every instrument to which a seal is

Horselle 08/11/2018

- affixed and until otherwise so determined every such instrument shall be Signed by one Director and by the Secretary or by a second Director.
- 31.4 The Company may authorise an agent appointed for the purpose to affix any seal of the Company to a document to which the Company is a party.

#### 32. AUTHENTICATION OF DOCUMENTS

- 32.1 Any Director or the Secretary or any Person appointed by the Directors for the purpose shall have power to authenticate any documents affecting the constitution of the Company (including the Memorandum of Association and these Articles), any resolutions passed by the Company or the Directors and any books, records, documents and accounts relating to the business of the Company and to certify copies thereof or extracts therefrom as true copies or extracts.
- 32.2 Where any books, records, documents or accounts of the Company are situated elsewhere than at the Office the local manager or other Officer or the company having the custody thereof shall be deemed to be a Person appointed by the Directors for the purposes set out in Article 32.1.

#### 33. DIVIDENDS

- 33.1 Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Company may by Ordinary Resolution declare dividends in accordance with the respective rights of the Members but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the Directors.
- 33.2 Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Directors may if they think fit from time to time pay to the Members such interim dividends as they may determine.
- 33.3 If at any time the share capital of the Company is divided into different classes the Directors may pay such interim dividends in respect of those shares which confer on the Holders thereof deferred or non-preferred rights as well as in respect of those shares which confer on the Holders thereof preferential rights with regard to dividend.
- 33.4 Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Directors may also pay half-yearly or at other suitable intervals to be settled by them any dividend which may be payable at a fixed rate.
- 33.5 Provided the Directors act bona fide they shall not incur any personal liability to the Holders of shares conferring a preference for any damage that they may suffer by reason of the payment of an interim dividend on any shares having deferred or non-preferred rights.
- 33.6 Subject to any particular rights or limitations as to dividend for the time being attached to any shares as may be specified in these Articles or upon which such shares may be issued, all dividends shall be declared apportioned and paid pro rata according to the amounts Paid Up on the shares on which the dividend is paid (otherwise than in advance of calls) provided that if any share is issued on terms providing that it shall rank for dividend as if Paid Up (in whole or in part) or as from a particular date (either past or future) such share shall rank for dividend accordingly.

Hampleto 08/11/2018

- 33.7 The Directors may before recommending any dividend set aside such sums as they think proper as a reserve or reserves which shall at the discretion of the Directors be applicable for any purpose to which such sums may be properly applied and pending such application may at the like discretion be employed in the business of the Company or be invested in such investments as the Directors may from time to time think fit.
- 33.8 The Directors may carry forward to the account of the succeeding year or years any balance which they do not think fit either to dividend or to place to reserve.
- 33.9 A general meeting declaring a dividend may upon the recommendation of the Directors direct that payment of such dividend shall be satisfied wholly or in part by the distribution of specific assets and in particular of Paid-Up shares or debentures of any other company and the Directors shall give effect to such resolution. Where any difficulty arises in regard to the distribution the Directors may settle the same as they think expedient and in particular may:
  - 33.9.1 issue certificates representing part of a shareholding or fractions of shares and may fix the value for distribution of such specific assets or any part thereof;
  - 33.9.2 determine that cash payment shall be made to any Members on the basis of the value so fixed in order to adjust the rights of Members;
  - 33.9.3 vest any specific assets in trustees upon trust for the Persons entitled to the dividend as may seem expedient to the Directors; and
  - 33.9.4 generally make such arrangements for the allotment, acceptance and sale of such specific assets or certificates representing part of a shareholding or fractions of shares or any part thereof or otherwise as they think fit.
- 33.10 Any resolution declaring a dividend on the shares of any class whether a resolution of the Company in general meeting or a resolution of the Directors or any resolution of the Directors for the payment of a fixed dividend on a date prescribed for the payment thereof may specify that the same shall be payable to the Persons registered as the Holders of shares of the class concerned at the close of business on a particular date notwithstanding that it may be a date prior to that on which the resolution is passed (or as the case may be that prescribed for payment of a fixed dividend) and thereupon the dividend shall be payable to them in accordance with their respective holdings so registered but without prejudice to the rights interse in respect of such dividend of transferors and transferoes of any shares of the relevant class.
- 33.11 The Directors may deduct from any dividend or other monies payable to any Member on or in respect of a share all sums of money (if any) presently payable by him to the Company on account of calls or otherwise in relation to the shares of the Company.
  - 33.12 Any dividend or other monies payable in respect of a share may be paid by cheque or warrant sent through the post to the registered address of the Member or Person entitled thereto and in the case of joint Holders to any one of such joint Holders or to such Person and to such address as the Holder or joint Holders may in Writing direct. Every such cheque or warrant shall be made payable to the order of the Person to whom it is sent or to such other Person as

Horialate 08/11/2018

the Holder or joint Holders may in Writing direct and payment of the cheque or warrant shall be a good discharge to the Company. Every such cheque or warrant shall be sent at the risk of the Person entitled to the money represented thereby.

- 33.13 All unclaimed dividends may be invested or otherwise made use of by the Directors for the benefit of the Company until claimed. No dividend shall bear interest as against the Company.
- 33.14 Any dividend which has remained unclaimed for a period of ten years from the date of declaration thereof shall if the Directors so resolve be forfeited and cease to remain owing by the Company and shall thenceforth belong to the Company absolutely.

#### 34. CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS

The Directors may with the authority of an Ordinary Resolution of the Company:

- 34.1 subject as hereinafter provided, resolve that it is desirable to capitalise any undistributed profits of the Company (including profits carried and standing to any reserve or reserves) not required for paying any fixed dividends on any shares entitled to fixed preferential dividends with or without further participation in profits or to capitalise any sum carried to reserve as a result of the sale or revaluation of the assets of the Company (other than goodwill) or any part thereof or to capitalise any sum standing to the credit of the Company's share premium account or capital redemption reserve fund;
- 34.2 appropriate the profits or sum resolved to be capitalised to the Members in the proportion in which such profits or sum would have been divisible amongst them had the same been applicable and had been applied in paying dividends and to apply such profits or sum on their behalf either in or towards paying up any amount for the time being unpaid on any shares held by such Members respectively or in paying up in full either at par or at such premium as the said resolution may provide any unissued shares or debentures of the Company such shares or debentures to be allotted and distributed credited as fully Paid Up to and amongst such Members in the proportions aforesaid or partly in one way and partly in the other provided that the share premium account and the capital redemption reserve fund and any unrealised profits may for the purposes of this Article only be applied in the paying up of unissued shares to be allotted to Members credited as fully Paid Up;
- 34.3 make all appropriations and applications of the profits or sum resolved to be capitalised thereby and all allotments and issues of fully paid shares or debentures if any and generally shall do all acts and things required to give effect thereto with full power to the Directors to make such provision by the issue of certificates representing part of a shareholding or fractions of shares or by payments in cash or otherwise as they think fit in the case of shares or debentures becoming distributable in fractions; and
- 34.4 authorise any Person to enter on behalf of all the Members entitled to the benefit of such appropriations and applications into an agreement with the Company providing for the allotment to them respectively credited as fully Paid Up of any further shares or debentures to which they may be entitled upon such capitalisation and any agreement made under such authority shall be effective and binding on all such Members.

bouldh 08/11/2018

#### 35. ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT

ċ

- 35.1 The Company shall keep accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and are such as to:
  - 35.1.1 disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company at that time; and
  - 35.1.2 enable the Directors to ensure that any accounts prepared by the Company comply with requirements of the Law.
- 35.2 The Directors shall prepare accounts of the Company made up to such date in each year as the Directors shall from time to time determine in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the Law.
- 35.3 No Member shall (as such) have any right to inspect any accounting records or other book or document of the Company except as conferred by the Law or authorised by the Directors or by Ordinary Resolution of the Company.
- 35.4 The Directors or the Company by Ordinary Resolution may from time to time appoint Auditors for any period or periods to examine the accounts of the Company and to report thereon in accordance with the Law.

#### 36. NOTICES

- 36.1 In the case of joint Holders of a share all Notices shall be given to that one of the joint Holders whose name stands first in the Register in respect of the joint holding and Notice so given shall be sufficient Notice to all the joint Holders.
- 36.2 A Notice may be given to any Person either personally or by sending it by post to him at his registered address. Where a Notice is sent by post service of the Notice shall be deemed to be effected by properly addressing prepaying and posting a letter containing the Notice and to have been effected one Clear Day after the day it was posted.
- 36.3 Any Member Present at any meeting of the Company shall for all purposes be deemed to have received due Notice of such meeting and where requisite of the purposes for which such meeting was convened.
- A Notice may be given by the Company to the Persons entitled to a share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a Member by sending or delivering it in any manner authorised by these Articles for the giving of Notice to a Member addressed to them by name or by the title of representatives of the deceased or trustee of the Bankrupt or curator of the Member or by any like description at the address if any supplied for that purpose by the Persons claiming to be so entitled. Until such an address has been supplied a Notice may be given in any manner in which it might have been given if the death, bankruptcy or incapacity had not occurred. If more than one Person would be entitled to receive a Notice in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a Member Notice given to any one of such Persons shall be sufficient Notice to all such Persons.

Min felile 08/11/2018

36.5 Notwithstanding any of the provisions of these Articles any Notice to be given by the Company to a Director or to a Member may be given in any manner agreed in advance by any such Director or Member.

#### 37. WINDING UP

- 37.1 Subject to any particular rights or limitations for the time being attached to any shares as may be specified in these Articles or upon which such shares may be issued if the Company is wound up, the assets available for distribution among the Members shall be applied first in repaying to the Members the amount Paid Up on their shares respectively and if such assets shall be more than sufficient to repay to the Members the whole amount Paid Up on their shares the balance shall be distributed among the Members in proportion to the amount which at the time of the commencement of the winding up had been actually Paid Up on their said shares respectively.
- 37.2 If the Company is wound up, the Company may with the sanction of a Special Resolution and any other sanction required by the Law divide the whole or any part of the assets of the Company among the Members in specie and the liquidator or where there is no liquidator the Directors may for that purpose value any assets and determine how the division shall be carried out as between the Members or different classes of Members and with the like sanction vest the whole or any part of the assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the Members as the liquidator or the Directors (as the case may be) with the like sanction determine but no Member shall be compelled to accept any assets upon which there is a liability.

## 38. INDEMNITY

- 38.1 In so far as the Law allows, every present or former Officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any loss or liability incurred by him by reason of being or having been such an Officer.
- 38.2 The Directors may without sanction of the Company in general meeting authorise the purchase or maintenance by the Company for any Officer or former Officer of the Company of any such insurance as is permitted by the Law in respect of any liability which would otherwise attach to such Officer or former Officer.

## 39. NON-APPLICATION OF STANDARD TABLE

The regulations constituting the Standard Table prescribed pursuant to the Law shall not apply to the Company and are hereby expressly excluded in their entirety.

Koinfalle 08/11/2018

We, the subscribers to the Memorandum of Association of the Company, desire to incorporate the Company subject to the above Articles of Association.

Name and Address Signature of

Subscriber

Number of limited shares taken by Subscriber at

of Subscriber

JTC Corporate

Services Limited

28 Esplanade

St Heller

Jersey

•

JE2 3QA

WITNESS to the above signatories:

Mark Russell 28 Esplanade

St Helier

Jersey

JE2 3QA

Variabelle 08/11/2018



## **FILE COPY**

# CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION OF AN OVERSEA COMPANY

(Registration of a UK establishment)

Company No. FC035848

UK Establishment No. BR020934

The Registrar of Companies hereby certifies that

## **ONYX HOLDINGS (LONDON) LIMITED**

has this day been registered under the Companies Act 2006 as having established a UK Establishment in the United Kingdom.

Given at Companies House on 28th December 2018.





In accordance with Section 1076 of the Companies Act 2006.

## **RP01**

# Replacement of document not meeting requirements for proper delivery



What this form is for

You can only use this form to file a replacement of a document that was previously delivered to the Registrar of Companies under the Companies Act 2006 on or after 1 October 2009 and was either not properly delivered or contained unnecessary material.

X What this form is NOT for

You cannot use this form to change information in a previously filed document, or to replace a document delivered under Section 25 of the Companies Act 2006 - Company Charges.

For further information, please refer to our guidance at www.companieshouse.gov.uk

1	Company details	
Company number	F C 0 3 5 8 4 8	→ Filling in this form Please complete in typescript or in
Company name in full	ONYX HOLDINGS (LONDON) LIMITED	bold black capitals.
2	Description of the original document	
Document type <b>Φ</b>	OSIN01 FORM FOR THE REGISTRATION OF AN OVERSEAS COMPANY WITH A UK ESTABLISHMENT, WHICH WAS FILED TOGETHER WITH THE COMPANY'S CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION AND MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION.	Description of the original document     Please enter the document type (e.g. articles of association) and any distinguishing information if more than one document of that type was filed on the same day.
Date of registration of the original document	d     2     6     8     1     2     9     9     9     1     9     8	
3	Signature	
	A replacement document must only be filed where (i) a document has previously been delivered and either (ii) that document was not properly delivered or (iii) that document contained unnecessary material.	
	Please sign either Section 3a or Section 3b.	
3a	The company to which the original document relates	
	Please complete this section if you are signing on behalf of the company to which the original document relates.	Societas Europaea If the form is being filed on behalf of a Societas Europaea (SE), please
	I am signing this form on behalf of the company.	delete 'director' and insert details of which organ of the SE the person
Signature	Signature X	signing has membership.  Person authorised  Under either section 270 or 274 of the Companies Act 2006.
	This form may be signed by: Director , Secretary, Person authorised , Permanent representative on behalf of an overseas company, Liquidator, Administrator, Administrative receiver, Receiver, Receiver manager, Charity commission receiver and manager, CIC manager, Judicial factor.	

## RP01 Replacement of document not meeting requirements for proper delivery 3b The person who delivered the original document Please complete this section if you are the person who delivered the original document. Signature Signature X Notes Please note: If you are applying for, or have been granted, exemption under Section 243 of the Companies Act 2006 and the document(s) you are replacing contain(s) your usual residential address, please post this form along with the replacement document to the address below: The Registrar of Companies, PO BOX 4082, Cardiff, CF14 3WE.

## **RP01**

Replacement of document not meeting requirements for proper delivery

## Presenter information You do not have to give any contact information, but if you do it will help Companies House if there is a query on the form. The contact information you give will be visible to searchers of the public record. FRIXOS KAIMAKAMIS Company name ATLAS PROPERTY LETTING & SERVICES LIMITED 51 THE GROVE Post town LONDON County/Region Postcode W 5 Country UK DX 02071391720

## Checklist

Please make	sure	you	have	remem	bered	the
following:						

- ☐ You have fully completed Section 2 'Description of the original document'.
- ☐ The correct person has signed the form in **either** Section 3a **or** Section 3b.
- If you are replacing a document where you have previously paid a fee, do not send a fee along with this form.
- ☐ You have enclosed the replacement document.
   ☐ If the company to which this document relates has signed up to the PROOF (PROtected Online Filing) scheme, you must also deliver with this form and the replacement document a PRO3 form 'Consent for paper filing'.

## Important information

Please note that all information on this form will appear on the public record.

## Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House address, however for expediency we advise you to return it to the appropriate address below:

For companies registered in England and Wales: The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ. DX 33050 Cardiff.

## For companies registered in Scotland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2, 139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF. DX ED235 Edinburgh 1 or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post).

## For companies registered in Northern Ireland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG. DX 481 N.R. Belfast 1.

## Section 243 exemption

If you are applying for, or have been granted, a section 243 exemption, please post this form along with the replacement document to the different postal address below:

The Registrar of Companies, PO Box 4082, Cardiff, CF14 3WE.

## **7** Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes on the website at www.companieshouse.gov.uk or email enquiries@companieshouse.gov.uk

This form is available in an alternative format. Please visit the forms page on the website at www.companieshouse.gov.uk

In accordance with Section 1046 of the Companies Act 2006 & Regulation 4(1) of the Overseas Companies Regulations 2009.

# **OS** IN01

# Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment



## Companies House

A fee is payable with this form Please see 'How to pay' on the last page.

✓ What this form is for

You may use this form to register a

UK establishment.

What this form is NOT for You cannot use this form to change the details of an existing company, officer or establishment. For further information, please refer to our guidance at www.gov.uk/companieshouse

Part 1	Overseas company details (Name)	For offic-al use			
A1	Corporate name of overseas company				
Corporate name •	ONYX HOLDINGS LIMITED	→ Filling in this form Please complete in typescript (10pt or above), or in bold black capitals			
	Do you propose to carry on business in the UK under the corporate name as incorporated in your home state or country, or under an alternative name?	All fields are mandatory unless specified or indicated by *  This must be the corporate name in the home state or country in which the company is incorporated.			
	<ul> <li>→ To register using your corporate name, go to Section A3.</li> <li>→ To register using an alternative name, go to Section A2.</li> </ul>				
A2	Alternative name of overseas company *				
	Please show the alternative name that the company will use to do business in the UK.	❷ A company may register an alternative name under which it proposes to carry on business in the			
Alternative name (if applicable)	ONYX HOLDINGS (LONDON) LIMITED	United Kingdom under Section 1048 of the Companies Act 2006. Once registered it is treated as being its corporate name for the purposes of law in the UK.			
A3	Overseas company name restrictions®				
	Please tick the box only if the proposed company name contains sensitive or restricted words or expressions that require you to seek comments of a government department or other specified body.	Overseas company name restrictions A list of sensitive or restricted word or expressions that require consent can be found in guidance available on our website: www.gov.uk/companieshouse			
	I confirm that the proposed company name contains sensitive or restricted words or expressions and that approval, where appropriate, has been sought of a government department or other specified body and I attach a copy of their response.				

Part 2	Overseas company details	
B1	Particulars previously delivered	
	Have particulars about this company been previously delivered in respect of another UK establishment. ●	• The particulars are: legal form, identity of register, number in
	<ul> <li>→ No Go to Section B2.</li> <li>→ Yes Please enter the registration number below and then go to Part 5 of the form. Please note the original UK establishment particulars must be filed up to date.</li> </ul>	registration, director and secretaries details, whether the company is a credit or financial institution, law, governing law, accounting requirements, objects, share capital, constitution, and accounts.
UK establishment registration number	BR	constitution, and accounts.
B2	Credit or financial institution	
	Is the company a credit or financial institution?	② Please tick one box.
	☐ Yes ☑ No	
B3	Company details	
	If the company is registered in its country of incorporation, please enter the details below.	Please state whether or not the company is limited. Please also include whether the company is
Legal form 😉	PRIVATE LIMITED COMPANY	a private or public company if applicable.
Country of ncorporation *	JERSEY	This will be the registry where the company is registered in its parent
dentity of register	JERSEY FINANCIAL SERVICES COMMISSION	country.
n which it is egistered <b>o</b>	PO BOX 267, 14-18 CASTLE STREET, ST HELIER, JERSEY JE4 9QD	
Registration number in that register	1 2 4 2 9 8	
B4	Governing law and accounting requirements	<u>'</u>
	Please give the law under which the company is incorporated.	This means the relevant rules or legislation which regulates the
Governing law 9	JERSEY	incorporation of companies in that state.
	Is the company required to prepare, audit and disclose accounting documents under parent law?  → Yes Complete the details below.	
	→ No Go to Part 3.  Please give the period for which the company is required to prepare accounts by	
	parent law.	
rom	d d m m	
Īo	d d m m	
	Please give the period allowed for the preparation and public disclosure of accounts for the above accounting period.	
Months		

	OS IN01 Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment	
B5	Latest disclosed accounts	,
	Are copies of the latest disclosed accounts being sent with this form? Please note if accounts have been disclosed, a copy must be sent with the form, and, if applicable, with a certified translation.	• Please tick the appropriate box(es).
	Yes.	
	Please indicate what documents have been disclosed.	
	Please tick this box if you have enclosed a copy of the accounts.	
	Please tick this box if you have enclosed a certified translation of the accounts.	
	Please tick this box if no accounts have been disclosed.	

Part 3	Constitution	
C1	Constitution of company	<u>-</u>
	<ul> <li>The following documents must be delivered with this application.</li> <li>Certified copy of the company's constitution and, if applicable, a certified translation.</li> <li>Please tick the appropriate box(es) below.</li> <li>✓ I have enclosed a certified copy of the company's constitution.</li> <li>I enclose a certified translation, if applicable.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>A certified copy is defined as a copy certified as correct and authenticated by - the secretary or a director of the company, permanent representative, administrator, administrative receiver, receiver manager, receiver and liquidator.</li> <li>A certified translation into English must be authenticated by the secretary or a director of the company, permanent representative, administrator, administrative receiver, receiver manager, receiver and liquidator.</li> </ul>
C2	Constitutional documents	
	Are all of the following details in the copy of the constitutional documents of the company?  - Address of principal place of business or registered office in home country of incorporation  - Objects of the Company  - Amount of issued share capital	
	<ul> <li>→ Yes Go to Part 4 'Officers of the company'</li> <li>→ No If any of the above details are not included in the constitutional documents, please enter them in Section C3.</li> <li>The information is not required if it is contained within the constitutional documents accompanying this registration.</li> </ul>	
C3	Information not included in the constitutional documents	<u> </u>
	Please give the address of principal place of business or registered office in the country of incorporation.	This address will appear on the public record.
Building name/number	22	Please give a brief description of the company's business.
Street	GRENVILLE STREET	Please specify the amount of shares issued and the value.
Post town	ST HELIER	
County/Region	JERSEY	
Postcode	J E 4 8 P X	
Country		
	Please give the objects of the company and the amount of issued share capital.	
Objects of the company <b>©</b>	GENERAL TRADING	
Amount of issued hare capital <b>9</b>	ONE SHARE OF GBP £1	

Part 4	Officers of the company	
	Have particulars about this company been previously delivered in respect of another UK establishment?	Continuation pages Please use a continuation page if you need to enter more officer
	<ul> <li>→ Yes Please ensure you entered the registration number in Section B1 and then go to Part 5 of this form.</li> <li>→ No Complete the officer details.</li> </ul>	details.
Saawataw.	For a secretary who is an individual, go to Section D1; for a corporate secretary, go to Section E1; for a director who is an individual, go to Section F1; or for a corporate director, go to Section G1.	
Secretary		
D1	Secretary details •	
	Use this section to list all the secretaries of the company.  Please complete Sections D1-D3. For a corporate secretary, complete  Sections E1-E5. Please use a continuation page if necessary.	● Corporate details  Please use Sections E1-E5 to enter  corporate secretary details.
Full forename(s)		Piease provide any previous names (including maiden or married names)
Surname		which have been used for business
Former name(s)		purposes in the last 20 years.
D2	Secretary's service address®	
Building name/number		Service address This is the address that will appear
Street		This is the address that will appear on the public record. This does not have to be your usual residential address.  If you provide your residential address here it will appear on the
Post town		
County/Region		public record.
Postcode		
Country		
D3	Secretary's authority	
	Please enter the extent of your authority as secretary. Please tick one box.	• If you have indicated that the extent of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authority	☐ Limited <b>⊙</b>	provide a brief description of the limited authority in the box below.
	□ Unlimited	If you have indicated that you are not authorised to act alone but only
Description of limited authority, if applicable		jointly, please enter the name(s) of the person(s) with whom you are
	Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.	authorised to act below.
	☐ Alone	
	☐ Jointly <b>9</b>	
If applicable, name(s) of person(s) with		
whom you are		
acting jointly		

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

## **Corporate secretary**

E1.	Corporate secretary details •	
	Use this section to list all the corporate secretaries of the company.  Please complete Sections E1-E3. Please use a continuation page if necessary.	• Registered or principal address This is the address that will appear on the public record. This address
Name of corporate body or firm		on the public record. This address must be a physical location for the delivery of documents. It cannot be a PO box number (unless contained
Building name/number		within a full address) or DX number.
Street		
Post town		
County/Region		
Postcode		
Country		
E2	Legal details	<u>'</u>
	Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by which it is governed. If applicable, please also give details of the register in which it is entered (including the state) and its registration number in that register.	Where you have provided details of the register (including state) where the company or firm is registered, you must also provide its number in
Legal form of the corporate body or firm		that register
Governing law		
If applicable, where the company/firm is registered •		
If applicable, the registration number		
E3	Corporate secretary's authority	
	Please enter the extent of your authority as corporate secretary. Please tick one box.	• If you have indicated that the extent of your authority is limited, please provide a brief description of the
Extent of authority	☐ Limited <b>①</b>	limited authority in the box below.
	□ Unlimited	If you have indicated that you are not authorised to act alone but only
Description of limited authority, if applicable		jointly, please enter the name(s) of the person(s) with whom you are
	Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.	authorised to act below.
	□ Alone	
	□ Jointly <b>②</b>	
If applicable, name(s) of person(s) with whom you are acting jointly		

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

## Director

Use this section to list all the directors of the company. Please complete Sections F1-F5. For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G3. Please use a continuation page if necessary.	Corporate details     Please use Sections G1-G3 to enter corporate director details.
-	1 '
l MARIA	<b>9</b> Former name(s) Please provide any previous names
PATTICHI	(including maiden or married names) which have been used for business
	purposes in the last 20 years.  Country/State of residence This is in respect of your usual residential address as stated in
ENGLAND	Section F5.  Month and year of birth
CYPRIOT	Please provide month and year only.
X X	Provide full date of birth in section F4.
DIRECTOR	● Business occupation  If you have a business occupation, please enter here. If you do not, please leave blank.
Director's service address <sup>©</sup>	
51	<b>⊙</b> Service address
THE GROVE	This is the address that will appear on the public record. This does not have to be your usual residential address.
LONDON	If you provide your residential
	address here it will appear on the public record.
W 5 5 D X	į
UK	
Director's authority	
Please enter the extent of your authority as director. Please tick one box.	If you have indicated that the extent of your authority is limited, please
□ Limited <b>②</b> ☑ Unlimited	provide a brief description of the limited authority in the box below.
	not authorised to act alone but only jointly, please enter the name(s) of the person(s) with whom you are authorised to act below.
Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.	
✓ Alone	
☐ Jointly <b>⑤</b>	
	CYPRIOT  X X   To T1   Y1   Y9   Y9   Y3  DIRECTOR  Director's service address   51  THE GROVE  LONDON  W 5   5   D   X    UK  Director's authority  Please enter the extent of your authority as director. Please tick one box.  Unlimited   V Unlimited  Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

## **Corporate director**

G1	Corporate director details •	
	Use this section to list all the corporate directors of the company.  Please complete G1-G3. Please use a continuation page if necessary.	• Registered or principal address This is the address that will appear
Name of corporate body or firm		on the public record. This address must be a physical location for the delivery of documents. It cannot be a PO box number (unless contained
Building name/number		within a full address) or DX number.
Street		
 Post town		
County/Region		
Postcode		
Country		
G2	Legal details	-
_	Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by which it is governed. If applicable, please also give details of the register in which it is entered (including the state) and its registration number in that register.	Where you have provided details of the register (including state) where the company or firm is registered, you must also provide its number in that register
Legal form of the corporate body or firm		
Governing law		
If applicable, where the company/firm is registered •		
If applicable, the registration number		
G3	Corporate director's authority	
	Please enter the extent of your authority as corporate director. Please tick one box.	If you have indicated that the extent of your authority is limited, please provide a brief description of the
Extent of authority	☐ Limited <b>①</b> ☐ Unlimited	provide a brief description of the limited authority in the box below.  If you have indicated that you are not authorised to act alone but only jointly, please enter the name(s) of
Description of limited authority, if applicable		the person(s) with whom you are
	Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.	authorised to act below.
	☐ Alone ☐ Jointly <b>②</b>	
of applicable, name(s) of person(s) with whom you are acting jointly		

Part 5	UK establishment details	
H1	Documents previously delivered - constitution	<del></del>
	Has the company previously registered a certified copy of the company's constitution with material delivered in respect of another UK establishment?  → No Go to Section H3.  → Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go to	
UK establishment registration number	Section H2.  B R	
H2	Documents previously delivered – accounting documents	
	Has the company previously delivered a copy of the company's accounting documents with material delivered in respect of another UK establishment?  → No Go to Section H3.  → Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go to Section H3.	
UK establishment registration number	B R	
Н3	Delivery of accounts and reports	
	This section <b>must</b> be completed. Please state if the company intends to comply with accounting requirements with respect to this establishment or in respect of another UK establishment.	• Please tick the appropriate box.
	✓ In respect of this establishment. Please go to Section H4.	
	☐ In respect of another UK establishment. Please give the registration number below, then go to <b>Section H4</b> .	
UK establishment registration number	B R	
H4	Particulars of UK establishment ♥	
	You must enter the name and address of the UK establishment.	• Address
Name of establishment	ONYX HOLDINGS LIMITED	This is the address that will appear on the public record.
Building name/number	51	
Street	THE GROVE	
Post town	LONDON	
County/Region		
Postcode	W 5 5 D X	
Country	UK	
	Please give the date the establishment was opened and the business of the establishment.	
Date establishment opened	$\stackrel{d}{0}$ $\stackrel{d}{0}$ $\stackrel{m}{0}$ $\stackrel{m}{7}$ $\stackrel{y}{2}$ $\stackrel{y}{0}$ $\stackrel{y}{1}$ $\stackrel{y}{7}$	
Business carried on at the UK establishment	PROPERTY HOLDINGS	

Part 6	Permanent representative	
	Please enter the name and address of every person authorised to represent the company as a permanent representative of the company in respect of the UK establishment.	
J1	Permanent representative's details	
	Please use this section to list all the permanent representatives of the company. Please complete Sections J1-J4.	Continuation pages Please use a continuation page if you need to enter more details.
Full forename(s)	MARIA	
Surname	PATTICHI	
J2	Permanent representative's service address •	
Building name/number	51	• Service address
Street	THE GROVE	This is the address that will appear on the public record. This does not have to be your usual residential address.
Post town	LONDON	If you provide your residential
County/Region		address here it will appear on the public record.
Postcode	W 5 5 D X	
Country	UK	
J3	Permanent representative's authority	
	Please enter the extent of your authority as permanent representative. Please tick one box.	If you have indicated that the exten of your authority is limited, please provide a brief description of the
Extent of authority	☐ Limited <b>9</b>	limited authority in the box below.
	☑ Unlimited	● If you have indicated that you are not authorised to act alone but only jointly, please enter the name(s) of
Description of limited authority, if applicable		the person(s) with whom you are authorised to act below.
	Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.	
	☑ Alone □ Jointly •	
If applicable, name(s) of person(s) with whom you are acting jointly		

Full forename(s)  Surname  Service address of person authorised to accept service  Building name/number  Street  O Service address This is the address that will on the public record. This do have to be your usual reside		documents on behalf of the company in respect of its UK establishment?				
authorised below. → No Tick the box below then go to Part 8 'Signature'.  If there is no such person, please tick this box.    Details of person authorised to accept service of documents in the UK    Please use this section to list all the persons' authorised to accept service below. Please complete Sections K1-K2.    Full forename(s)		→ Yes Please enter the name and service address of every nerson(s)				
If there is no such person, please tick this box.    Details of person authorised to accept service of documents in the UK		authorised below.				
in the UK    Please use this section to list all the persons' authorised to accept service below. Please complete Sections K1-K2.    Full forename(s)   Continuation pages Please use a continuation page need to enter more details.    Full forename(s)   Surname   Service address of person authorised to accept service		I				
Please complete Sections K1-K2.  Full forename(s)  Surname  K2 Service address of person authorised to accept service  Building name/number  Street  O Service address This is the address that will on the public record. This do have to be your usual reside address. Please note, a DX a would not be acceptable.		·				
Surname    Service address of person authorised to accept service			Please use a continuation page if you			
Service address of person authorised to accept service  Building name/number  Street  O Service address This is the address that will on the public record. This do have to be your usual reside address. Please note, a DX a would not be acceptable.	Full forename(s)					
Building name/number  Street  Street	Surname		ļ			
Street  This is the address that will on the public record. This do have to be your usual reside address. Please note, a DX a would not be acceptable.	K2	Service address of person authorised to accept service •				
Street on the public record. This do have to be your usual reside address. Please note, a DX a would not be acceptable.	Building name/number					
Post town would not be acceptable.	Street		on the public record. This does not have to be your usual residential address. Please note, a DX address			
	Post town		would not be acceptable.			
County/Region County/Region	County/Region					
Postcode	Postcode					
Country	Country					

Part 8	Signature		
	This must be completed by all companies.		
	I am signing this form on behalf of the company.		
Signature	Signature  X  Kannahat	×	
	This form may be signed by: Director, Secretary, Permanent representative.		

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

## Presenter information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if you do it will help Companies House if there is a query on the form. The contact information you give will be visible to searchers of the public record.

Contact name	FRIXOS KAIMAKAMIS
Company name	ATLAS PROPERTY LETTING &
SERVICE	ES LTD
Address 51	THE GROVE
Post town	LONDON
County/Region	
Postcode	W 5 5 D X
Country	UK
DX	
Telephone	02071391720

## ✓ Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or with information missing.

## Please make sure you have remembered the following:

- ☐ The overseas corporate name on the form matches the constitutional documents exactly.
- You have included a copy of the appropriate correspondence in regard to sensitive words, if appropriate.
- You have included certified copies and certified translations of the constitutional documents, if appropriate.
- You have included a copy of the latest disclosed accounts and certified translations, if appropriate.
- ☐ You have completed all of the company details in Section B3 if the company has not registered an existing establishment.
- You have complete details for all company secretaries and directors in Part 4 if the company has not registered an existing establishment.
- Any addresses given must be a physical location. They cannot be a PO Box number (unless part of a full service address) DX number.
- ☐ You have completed details for all permanent representatives in Part 6 and persons authorised to accept service in Part 7.
- ☐ You have signed the form.
- You have enclosed the correct fee.

## Important information

Please note that all information on this form will appear on the public record, apart from information relating to usual residential addresses and day of birth.

## £ How to pay

A fee of £20 is payable to Companies House in respect of a registration of an overseas company. Make cheques or postal orders payable to 'Companies House.'

## Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House address, however for expediency we advise you to return it to the appropriate address below:

## **England and Wales:**

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ. DX 33050 Cardiff.

#### Scotland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2, 139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF. DX ED235 Edinburgh 1.

## Northern Ireland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG. DX 481 N.R. Belfast 1.

## Higher protection

If you are applying for, or have been granted, higher protection, please post this whole form to the different postal address below:
The Registrar of Companies, PO Box 4082, Cardiff, CF14 3WE.

## 7 Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse or email enquiries@companieshouse.gov.uk

This form is available in an alternative format. Please visit the forms page on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse



## Jersey Financial Services Commission

Companies Registry

## COMPANIES (JERSEY) LAW 1991, as amended

## CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF A LIMITED COMPANY

Registered Number 124298

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT

**ONYX HOLDINGS LIMITED** 

is this day incorporated as a private company under the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991

Dated this 17 July 2017

For and on behalf of the Registrar

I certify this to be a true comy of the original

fundate

10/03/2022

MARIA PATTICHI

DIRFTTO

FLAT 74, BRYANSTON COURT, 137 GEORGE STREET, CHF HIW MCDNOL

Authentication ID c459f08f-49fd-4078-b2fb-2c0c15f3511a



**COMPANIES (JERSEY) LAW 1991** 

**MEMORANDUM** 

**AND** 

**ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION** 

OF

**Onyx Holdings Limited** 

a par value limited company

Company number: 124298

Incorporated the 17th day of July 2017

7 certity this to be a true come of the original tentre

MARIA PATTICH

DIRECTOR

FLAT 74, BRYANSTON COURT, 137 GEORGE STREET, LONDON WITH THO

## COMPANIES (JERSEY) LAW 1991 (the "Law")

## **MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION**

**OF** 

## **Onyx Holdings Limited**

(the "Company")

## a par value limited company

## 1. INTERPRETATION

Words and expressions contained in this Memorandum of Association have the same meanings as in the Law.

## 2. COMPANY NAME

The name of the Company is Onyx Holdings Limited.

## 3. TYPE OF COMPANY

- 3.1 The Company is a private company.
- 3.2 The Company is a par value company.

## 4. NUMBER OF SHARES

The share capital of the Company is GBP1000 divided into 1,000 ordinary shares at GBP1.00 each.

## 5. LIABILITY OF MEMBERS

The liability of a member arising from the holding of a share in the Company is limited to the amount (if any) unpaid on it.

10/03/2022

We, the persons whose names and addresses are hereunto subscribed, desire to be formed into a company in pursuance of this Memorandum of Association, and we respectively agree to take the number of shares in the Company set out opposite our respective names.

Name and Address Signature of

Number of limited shares taken by Subscriber at

of Subscriber

Subscriber

Mount One

JTC Corporate

**Services Limited** 

28 Esplanade

St Helier

Jersey

JE2 3QA

WITNESS to the above signatories:

Mark Russell

28 Esplanade

St Helier

Jersey

JE2 3QA

1033483/0079/J7977178v1

# **COMPANIES (JERSEY) LAW 1991**

# **ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION**

OF

# **Onyx Holdings Limited**

# a par value limited company

# CONTENTS

1.	INTERPRETATION	1
2.	SHARE CAPITAL	3
3.	SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT	5
4.	ALTERATION OF SHARE CAPITAL	5
5.	VARIATION OF RIGHTS	5
6.	REGISTER OF MEMBERS	6
7.	SHARE CERTIFICATES	6
8.	LIEN	7
9.	CALLS ON SHARES	8
10.	FORFEITURE OF SHARES	9
11.	TRANSFER OF SHARES	10
12.	TRANSMISSION OF SHARES	13
13.	GENERAL MEETINGS	13
14.	CLASS MEETINGS	14
15.	NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS	14
16.	PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS	14
17.	VOTES OF MEMBERS	16
18.	CORPORATE MEMBERS	17
1033483/	/0079/J7977178v1 i	13/2022

19.	DIRECTORS	18
20.	ALTERNATE DIRECTORS	18
21.	POWERS OF DIRECTORS	18
22.	DELEGATION OF DIRECTORS' POWERS	19
23.	APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS	19
24.	RESIGNATION, DISQUALIFICATION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS	20
<b>25</b> .	REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES OF DIRECTORS	20
26.	EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS	20
27.	DIRECTORS' INTERESTS	20
28.	PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS	22
29.	MINUTE BOOK	23
30.	SECRETARY	24
31.	THE SEAL	24
32.	AUTHENTICATION OF DOCUMENTS	25
33.	DIVIDENDS	25
34.	CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS	27
35.	ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT	28
36.	NOTICES	28
37.	WINDING UP	29
38.	INDEMNITY	29
39.	NON-APPLICATION OF STANDARD TABLE	29

# **COMPANIES (JERSEY) LAW 1991**

#### ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

# **Onyx Holdings Limited**

### a par value limited company

# 1. INTERPRETATION

- 1.1 In these Articles, unless the context or law otherwise requires, the following words and expressions shall have the meanings respectively assigned to them below:
  - 1.1.1 "these Articles" means these Articles of Association in their present form or as from time to time amended:
  - 1.1.2 "Auditors" means the auditors (if any) of the Company appointed pursuant to these Articles;
  - 1.1.3 "Bankrupt" has the meaning ascribed to it in the Interpretation (Jersey) Law, 1954;
  - 1.1.4 "Clear Days" means in relation to the period of a Notice that period excluding the day when the Notice is served or deemed to be served and the day for which it is given or on which it is to take effect;
  - 1.1.5 "Company" means the company incorporated under the Law in respect of which these Articles have been registered;
  - 1.1.6 "Directors" means the directors of the Company for the time being;
  - 1.1.7 "Holder" means in relation to shares the Member whose name is entered in the Register as the holder of the shares;
  - 1.1.8 "the Law" means the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 and any subordinate legislation from time to time made thereunder, including any statutory modifications or reenactments for the time being in force;
  - 1.1.9 "Member" means the subscribers to the Memorandum of Association of the Company and any other Person whose name is entered in the Register as the Holder of shares in the Company;
  - 1.1.10 "Month" means calendar month;
  - 1.1.11 "Notice" means a notice in Writing unless otherwise specifically stated;

(0)03/2022

- 1.1.12 "Office" means the registered office of the Company;
- 1.1.13 "Officer" includes a Secretary but otherwise has the meaning ascribed to it in the Law:
- 1.1.14 "Ordinary Resolution" means a resolution of the Company in general meeting adopted by a simple majority of the votes cast at that meeting;
- 1.1.15 "Paid Up" includes credited as paid up;
- 1.1.16 "Persons" includes associations and bodies of persons, whether corporate or unincorporate;
- 1.1.17 "Present" in relation to general meetings of the Company and to meetings of the Holders of any class of shares includes present by attorney or by proxy or in the case of a corporate shareholder by representative;
- 1.1.18 "Register" means the register of Members required to be kept pursuant to Article 41 of the Law;
- 1.1.19 "Seal" means the common seal of the Company;
- 1.1.20 "Secretary" means any Person appointed to perform any of the duties of secretary of the Company (including an assistant or deputy secretary) and in the event of two or more Persons being appointed as joint secretaries any one or more of the Persons so appointed;
- 1.1.21 "Signed" includes a signature or representation of a signature affixed by mechanical or other means or any other means of signifying agreement permitted by law and where a document is to be signed by a company, an association or a body of Persons the word "Signed" shall be construed as including the signature of a duly authorised representative on its behalf as well as any other means by which it would normally execute the document:
- 1.1.22 "Special Resolution" means a resolution of the Company passed as a special resolution in accordance with the Law; and
- 1.1.23 "in Writing" includes written, printed, telexed, electronically transmitted or represented or reproduced by any other mode of representing or reproducing words in a visible form.
- Save as defined herein and unless the context otherwise requires, words or expressions contained in these Articles shall bear the same meaning as in the Law but excluding any statutory modification thereof not in force when these Articles become binding on the Company.
- 1.3 In these Articles, unless the context or law otherwise requires:

(0/03/2022

- 1.3.1 words and expressions which are cognate to those defined in Article 1.1 shall be construed accordingly;
- 1.3.2 the word "may" shall be construed as permissive and the word "shall" shall be construed as imperative;
- 1.3.3 words importing the singular number only shall be construed as including the plural number and *vice versa*;
- 1.3.4 words importing the masculine gender only shall be construed as including the feminine and neuter genders;
- 1.3.5 the word "dividend" has the meaning ascribed to the word "distribution" in Article 114 of the Law;
- 1.3.6 references to enactments are to such enactments as are from time to time modified, re-enacted or consolidated and shall include any enactment made in substitution for an enactment that is repealed; and
- 1.3.7 references to a numbered Article are to the Article so numbered of these Articles.
- 1.4 The clause and paragraph headings in these Articles are for convenience only and shall not be taken into account in the construction or interpretation of these Articles.

# 2. SHARE CAPITAL

- 2.1 The share capital of the Company is as specified in the Memorandum of Association and the shares of the Company shall have the rights and be subject to the conditions contained in these Articles.
- 2.2 Without prejudice to any special rights for the time being conferred on the Holders of any shares or class of shares (which special rights shall not be varied or abrogated except with such consent or sanction as is hereinafter provided) any share or class of shares in the capital of the Company may be issued with such preferred, deferred or other special rights or such restrictions whether in regard to dividends, return of capital, voting or otherwise as the Company may from time to time by Ordinary Resolution determine.
- 2.3 The Company may issue fractions of shares in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the Law provided that:
  - 2.3.1 a fraction of a share shall be taken into account in determining the entitlement of a Member as regards dividends or on a winding up; and
  - 2.3.2 a fraction of a share shall not entitle a Member to a vote in respect thereof.
- 2.4 Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Company may from time to time:
  - 2.4.1 issue: or

2.4.2 convert any existing non-redeemable shares (whether issued or not) into.

shares which are to be redeemed or are liable to be redeemed at the option of the Company or at the option of the Holder thereof and on such terms and in such manner as may be determined by Special Resolution.

- 2.5 Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Company may purchase its own shares (including redeemable shares) including by the purchase of depositary certificates in respect of such shares.
- 2.6 All unissued shares which the Directors propose to issue shall, unless the Company otherwise directs by Ordinary Resolution, be offered first to the Members in accordance with the following procedure:
  - 2.6.1 the shares shall be offered in proportion to the number of the existing shares held by the Members respectively;
  - 2.6.2 the offer shall be made by Notice from the Directors specifying the number of shares offered and the subscription price and limiting the period (not being less than fourteen Clear Days) within which the offer, if not accepted, will be deemed to have been declined:
  - 2.6.3 after the expiration of that period, shares declined or deemed to have been declined shall be offered to those Members (if any) who have, within that period, accepted all the shares offered to them, such offer being made in the proportions which their existing shares bear to one another;
  - 2.6.4 this further offer shall be made in like terms and in the same manner and be limited by a like period as the original offer:
  - 2.6.5 where the circumstances do not allow shares to be offered precisely in the proportions specified in this Article they shall be offered in proportions which are as close as can be achieved to such proportions;
  - 2.6.6 subject to Article 2.6.7, any shares which have not been duly accepted pursuant to the foregoing procedure and any shares released from the provisions of this Article by Ordinary Resolution shall be at the disposal of the Directors who may allot, grant options over or otherwise dispose of them to such Persons at such times and generally on such terms and conditions as they think fit;
  - 2.6.7 the Directors may not dispose of any shares pursuant to Article 2.6.6 on terms which are more favourable to the subscriber than the terms upon which they were offered to the Members.
- 2.7 The Company may apply its shares or capital money either directly or indirectly in payment of a commission, discount or allowance to a Person. Any such commission, discount or allowance may be satisfied by the payment of cash and/or by the allotment of fully or partly paid shares or in any other way. 10/03/2020

2.8 Except as otherwise provided by these Articles or by law, no Person shall be recognised by the Company as holding any share upon any trust and the Company shall not be bound by or be compelled in any way to recognise any equitable, contingent, future or partial interest in any share or any interest in any fraction of a share or any other right in respect of any share except an absolute right to the entirety thereof in the Holder.

#### 3. SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

- 3.1 Except as provided in Article 3.2, where the Company issues shares at a premium, the amount or value (as determined by the Directors) of any premiums shall be transferred, as and when the premiums are Paid Up, to a share premium account which shall be kept in the books of the Company in the manner required by the Law. The sums for the time being standing to the credit of the share premium account shall be applied only in accordance with the Law.
- 3.2 Where the Law permits the Company to refrain from transferring any amount to a share premium account, that amount need not be so transferred; but the Directors may if they think fit nevertheless cause all or any part of such amount to be transferred to the relevant share premium account.
- 3.3 The Company may by Ordinary Resolution transfer an amount to a share premium account of the Company from any other account of the Company (other than the capital redemption reserve or the nominal capital account).

#### 4. **ALTERATION OF SHARE CAPITAL**

- 4.1 The Company may by Special Resolution alter its share capital as stated in the Memorandum of Association in any manner permitted by the Law.
- 4.2 Any new shares created on an increase or other alteration of share capital shall be issued upon such terms and conditions as the Company may by Ordinary Resolution determine.
- Any capital raised by the creation of new shares shall, unless otherwise provided by the 4.3 conditions of issue of the new shares, be considered as part of the original capital and the new shares shall be subject to the provisions of these Articles with reference to the payment of calls, transfer and transmission of shares, lien or otherwise applicable to the existing shares in the Company.
- 4.4 Subject to the provisions of the Law the Company may by Special Resolution reduce its capital accounts in any way.

#### 5. **VARIATION OF RIGHTS**

1033483/0079/J7977178v1

Whenever the capital of the Company is divided into different classes of shares the special 5.1 rights attached to any class may (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class) be varied or abrogated either whilst the Company is a going concern or during or in contemplation of a winding up: Lalasa Sand

5

- 5.1.1 with the consent in Writing of the Holders of two-thirds of the issued shares of that class: or
- 5.1.2 with the sanction of a Special Resolution passed at a separate meeting of the Holders of shares of that class.
- 5.2 To every such separate meeting all the provisions of these Articles and of the Law relating to general meetings of the Company or to the proceedings thereat shall apply mutatis mutandis except that the necessary quorum shall be two Persons holding or representing at least one third in nominal amount of the issued shares of that class but so that if at any adjourned meeting of such Holders a quorum as above defined is not Present those Holders who are Present shall be a quorum.
- 5.3 The special rights conferred upon the Holders of any shares or class of shares issued with preferred, deferred or other special rights shall (unless otherwise expressly provided by the conditions of issue of such shares) be deemed not to be varied by the creation or issue of further shares ranking after or pari passu therewith.

#### **REGISTER OF MEMBERS** 6.

- 6.1 The Directors shall maintain or cause to be maintained a Register in the manner required by the Law. The Register shall be kept at the Office or at such other place in the Island of Jersey as the Directors from time to time determine. In each year the Directors shall prepare or cause to be prepared and filed an annual return containing the particulars required by the Law.
- 6.2 The Company shall not be required to enter the names of more than four joint Holders in the Register.

#### 7. SHARE CERTIFICATES

- 7.1 Every Member shall be entitled:
  - without payment upon becoming the Holder of any shares to one certificate for all the 7.1.1 shares of each class held by him and upon transferring a part only of the shares comprised in a certificate to a new certificate for the remainder of the shares so comprised; or
  - 7.1.2 upon payment of such reasonable sum for each certificate as the Directors shall from time to time determine to several certificates each for one or more of his shares of any class.
- 7.2 Every certificate shall be issued within two Months after allotment or lodgment of transfer (or within such other period as the conditions of issue shall provide) and shall be executed by the Company. A certificate may be executed:
  - if the Company has a Seal, by causing a seal of the Company to be affixed to the 7.2.1 certificate in accordance with these Articles; or 10/03/2022

7.2.2 whether or not the Company has a Seal, by the signature on behalf of the Company of either two Directors or one Director and the Secretary.

Every certificate shall further specify the shares to which it relates and the amount Paid Up thereon and if so required by the Law the distinguishing numbers of such shares.

- 7.3 The Company shall not be bound to issue more than one certificate in respect of a share held jointly by several Persons and delivery of a certificate for a share to one of several joint Holders shall be sufficient delivery to all such Holders.
- 7.4 If a share certificate shall be worn out, defaced, lost or destroyed a duplicate certificate may be issued on payment of such reasonable fee and on such terms (if any) as to evidence and indemnity and the payment of out-of-pocket expenses of the Company in relation thereto as the Directors think fit.

# 8. LIEN

- 8.1 The Company shall have a first and paramount lien on every share (not being a fully paid share) for all monies (whether presently payable or not) called or payable at a fixed time in respect of that share and the Company shall also have a first and paramount lien on all shares (other than fully paid shares) registered in the name of a single Member for all the debts and liabilities of such Member or his estate to the Company whether the period for the payment or discharge of the same shall have actually commenced or not and notwithstanding that the same are joint debts or liabilities of such Member or his estate and any other Person whether a Member or not. The Company's lien (if any) on a share shall extend to all dividends or other monies payable thereon or in respect thereof. The Directors may resolve that any share shall for such period as they think fit be exempt from the provisions of this Article.
- 8.2 The Company may sell in such manner as the Directors think fit any shares on which the Company has a lien but no sale shall be made unless the monies in respect of which such lien exists or some part thereof are or is presently payable nor until fourteen Clear Days have expired after a Notice stating and demanding payment of the monies presently payable and giving Notice of intention to sell in default shall have been served on the Holder for the time being of the shares or the Person entitled thereto by reason of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of such Holder.
- 8.3 To give effect to any such sale the Directors may authorise some Person to execute an instrument of transfer of the shares sold to the purchaser thereof. The purchaser shall be registered as the Holder of the shares so transferred and he shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money nor shall his title to the shares be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the sale.
- The net proceeds of such sale after payment of the costs of such sale shall be applied in or towards payment or satisfaction of the debt or liability in respect of which the lien exists so far as the same is presently payable and any residue shall (subject to a like lien for debts or liabilities not presently payable as existed upon the shares prior to the sale) be paid to the Person entitled to the shares at the time of the sale.

Sontal -

### 9. CALLS ON SHARES

- 9.1 The Directors may subject to the provisions of these Articles and to any conditions of allotment from time to time make calls upon the Members in respect of any monies unpaid on their shares (whether on account of the nominal value of the shares or by way of premium) and each Member shall (subject to being given at least fourteen Clear Days' Notice specifying the time or times and place of payment) pay to the Company at the time or times and place so specified the amount called on his shares.
- 9.2 A call may be required to be paid by instalments.
- 9.3 A call may before receipt by the Company of any sum due thereunder be revoked in whole or in part and payment of a call may be postponed in whole or in part.
- 9.4 A Person upon whom a call is made shall remain liable for calls made upon him notwithstanding the subsequent transfer of the shares in respect whereof the call was made.
- 9.5 A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Directors authorising the call was passed.
- 9.6 The joint Holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all calls and all other payments to be made in respect of such share.
- 9.7 If a sum called in respect of a share is not paid before or on the day appointed for payment thereof the Person from whom the sum is due may be required to pay interest on the sum from the day appointed for payment thereof to the time of actual payment at a rate determined by the Directors but the Directors shall be at liberty to waive payment of such interest wholly or in part.
- 9.8 Any sum which by or pursuant to the terms of issue of a share becomes payable upon allotment or at any fixed date whether on account of the nominal value of the share or by way of premium shall for the purposes of these Articles be deemed to be a call duly made and payable on the date on which by or pursuant to the terms of issue the same becomes payable and in case of non-payment all the relevant provisions of these Articles as to payment of interest, forfeiture, surrender or otherwise shall apply as if such sum had become due and payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.
- 9.9 The Directors may on the issue of shares differentiate between the Holders as to the amount of calls to be paid and the times of payment.
- 9.10 The Directors may if they think fit receive from any Member an advance of monies which have not yet been called on his shares or which have not yet fallen due for payment. Such advance payments shall, to their extent, extinguish the liability in respect of which they are paid. The Company may pay interest on any such advance, at such rate as the Directors think fit, for the period covering the date of payment to the date (the "Due Date") when the monies would have been due had they not been paid in advance. For the purposes of entitlement to dividends, monies paid in advance of a call or instalment shall not be treated as paid until the Due Date.

### 10. FORFEITURE OF SHARES

- 10.1 If a Member fails to pay any call or instalment of a call on or before the day appointed for payment thereof the Directors may at any time thereafter during such time as any part of such call or instalment remains unpaid serve a Notice on him requiring payment of so much of the call or instalment as is unpaid together with any interest which may have accrued and any costs, charges and expenses which may have been incurred by the Company by reason of such non-payment.
- 10.2 The Notice shall name a further day (not earlier than the expiration of fourteen Clear Days from the date of service of such Notice) on or before which the payment required by the Notice is to be made and the place where payment is to be made and shall state that in the event of non-payment at or before the time appointed and at the place appointed the shares in respect of which the call was made will be liable to be forfeited.
- 10.3 If the requirements of any such Notice as aforesaid are not complied with any share in respect of which such Notice has been given may at any time thereafter before payment of all calls and interest due in respect thereof has been made be forfeited by a resolution of the Directors to that effect and such forfeiture shall include all dividends which shall have been declared on the forfeited shares and not actually paid before the forfeiture.
- 10.4 When any share has been forfeited in accordance with these Articles, Notice of the forfeiture shall forthwith be given to the Holder of the share or the Person entitled to the share by transmission as the case may be and an entry of such Notice having been given and of the forfeiture with the date thereof shall forthwith be made in the Register opposite to the entry of the share but no forfeiture shall be invalidated in any manner by any omission or neglect to give such Notice or to make such entry as aforesaid.
- 10.5 The Directors may, at any time after serving a Notice in accordance with Article 10.1, accept from the Member concerned the surrender of such shares as are the subject of the Notice, without the need otherwise to comply with the provisions of Articles 10.1 to 10.4. Any such shares shall be surrendered immediately and irrevocably upon the Member delivering to the Company the share certificate for the shares and such surrender shall also constitute a surrender of all dividends declared on the surrendered shares but not actually paid before the surrender. The Company shall, upon such surrender forthwith make an entry in the Register of the surrender of the share with the date thereof but no surrender shall be invalidated in any manner by any omission or neglect to make such entry as aforesaid.
- A forfeited or surrendered share shall become the property of the Company and may be sold, re-allotted or otherwise disposed of either to the Person who was before forfeiture or surrender the Holder thereof or entitled thereto or to any other Person upon such terms and in such manner as the Directors think fit and at any time before a sale, re-allotment or other disposition the forfeiture or surrender may be cancelled on such terms as the Directors think fit. Where for the purposes of its disposal a forfeited or surrendered share is to be transferred to any Person the Directors may authorise some Person to execute an instrument of transfer of the share to that Person.

- 10.7 A Member whose shares have been forfeited or surrendered shall cease to be a Member in respect of the forfeited or surrendered shares and shall (if he has not done so already) surrender to the Company for cancellation the certificate for the shares forfeited or surrendered. Notwithstanding the forfeiture or the surrender such Member shall remain liable to pay to the Company all monies which at the date of forfeiture or surrender were presently payable by him in respect of those shares with interest thereon at the rate at which interest was payable before the forfeiture or surrender or at such rate as the Directors may determine from the date of forfeiture or surrender until payment, provided that the Directors may waive payment wholly or in part or enforce payment without any allowance for the value of the shares at the time of forfeiture or surrender or for any consideration received on their disposal.
- 10.8 A declaration under oath by a Director or the Secretary (or by an Officer of a corporate Secretary) that a share has been duly forfeited or surrendered on a specified date shall be conclusive evidence of the facts therein stated as against all Persons claiming to be entitled to the share. The declaration and the receipt of the Company for the consideration (if any) given for the share on the sale re-allotment or disposal thereof together with the certificate for the share delivered to a purchaser or allottee thereof shall (subject to the execution of an instrument of transfer if the same be so required) constitute good title to the share. The Person to whom the share is sold, re-allotted or disposed of shall be registered as the Holder of the share and shall not be bound to see to the application of the consideration (if any) nor shall his title to the share be affected by any irregularity in or invalidity of the proceedings in respect of the forfeiture, surrender, sale, re-allotment or disposal of the share.

#### TRANSFER OF SHARES 11.

- 11.1 Save as otherwise permitted under the provisions of the Law, all transfers of shares shall be effected using an instrument of transfer.
- 11.2 The instrument of transfer of any share shall be in Writing in any usual common form or any form approved by the Directors.
- 11.3 The instrument of transfer of any share shall be Signed by or on behalf of the transferor and in the case of an unpaid or partly paid share by the transferee. The transferor shall be deemed to remain the Holder of the share until the name of the transferee is entered in the Register in respect thereof.
- 11.4 Subject to Article 11.4.10, no Member wishing to transfer all or any of his shares (the "Offeror") shall transfer such shares (the "Offer Shares") without first complying with the following procedure:
  - 11.4.1 The Offeror shall offer the Offer Shares to the other Holders of shares of the same class as the Offer Shares first by Notice (the "Sale Notice") to the Secretary indicating his wish to sell the Offer Shares and the number of shares involved.
  - 11.4.2 The Secretary shall within one week following receipt of the Sale Notice acknowledge receipt and give Notice of the Sale Notice to the other Holders of shares of the same class as the Offer Shares. 10/03/2022

- 11.4.3 The Secretary shall within two weeks following receipt of the Sale Notice require the Auditors (if there shall be any) and failing which such firm of chartered accountants as the Directors shall have nominated for such purpose (the "Valuers") within a period of six weeks to issue a certificate certifying the fair value (the "Fair Value") of the Offer Shares (the "Valuation Certificate"). In valuing the Offer Shares the Valuers shall assume that the Offer Shares can be transferred without restriction and shall take account of the business as a going concern of the Company. The Valuers shall be deemed to be acting as experts and not as arbitrators and the Valuation Certificate shall be deemed to be conclusive and final and binding save only in the case of manifest error. The Valuation Certificate shall be prepared at the cost of the Offeror.
- 11.4.4 Within one week following receipt of the Valuation Certificate the Secretary shall offer the Offer Shares for sale at the Fair Value by Notice (the "Offer Notices") to the other Holders of shares of the same class as the Offer Shares pro rata according to the proportion which the nominal value of the shares of the same class as the Offer Shares held by them bears to the total nominal value of the shares of the same class as the Offer Shares less the nominal value of the Offer Shares.
- 11.4.5 Within two weeks following the Secretary issuing the Offer Notices the persons to whom the Offer Notices have been issued may serve written Notices ("Acceptance Notices") upon the Secretary indicating his or their willingness to acquire all or any of the Offer Shares offered to him or them at the price indicated in the Offer Notices.
- 11.4.6 Within four weeks following the Secretary issuing the Offer Notices the Secretary shall offer all of those Offer Shares in respect of which Acceptance Notices shall not have been received (the "Available Shares") for sale at the Fair Value by Notice (the "Second Offer Notice") to each of those Holders of shares of the same class as the Offer Shares who shall have served Acceptance Notices.
- 11.4.7 Within two weeks following the Secretary issuing the Second Offer Notices the Persons to whom the Second Offer Notices have been issued may serve written Notices ("Second Acceptance Notices") upon the Secretary indicating his or their willingness to acquire all or any of the Available Shares offered to him or them at the price indicated in the Second Offer Notices. In the event that Second Acceptance Notices shall be served in respect of more shares than shall comprise the Available Shares the Available Shares shall be divided between those Persons serving Second Acceptance Notices pro rata according to the proportion which the nominal value of the shares of the same class as the Offer Shares held by each of them bears to the total nominal value of the shares of the same class as the Offer Shares held by all such Persons serving Second Acceptance Notices.
- 11.4.8 The transfers of Offer Shares shall be completed in usual form upon payment of the Fair Value which shall take place no later than four weeks after the date upon which the relevant Acceptance Notice or Second Acceptance Notice as the case may be shall be served upon the Secretary. 10/03/2022

- 11.4.9 In connection with this Article 11.4, the times indicated shall be of the essence and in the event of the times not being adhered to or if no Acceptance Notices or Second Acceptance Notices are received by the Secretary by the date due the Offeror shall be at liberty to transfer the shares which are the subject of the Offer Notices or Second Offer Notices as the case may be to a third party at any valuation and on any terms he feels appropriate subject to the provisions of these Articles.
- 11.4.10 With the consent in Writing of all the Holders for the time being of shares of the same class as the Offer Shares the provisions of this Article 11.4 may be waived or varied.
- 11.5 Without prejudice to the provisions of Article 11.4, the Directors may in their absolute discretion and without assigning any reason therefor refuse to register the transfer of a share including without limitation a transfer of shares to a Person of whom they do not approve and a transfer of a share on which the Company has a lien.
- 11.6 The Directors may also refuse to register the transfer of a share unless the instrument of transfer:
  - 11.6.1 is lodged at the Office or at such other place as the Directors may appoint accompanied by the certificate for the shares to which it relates and such other evidence as the Directors may reasonably require to show the right of the transferor to make the transfer;
  - 11.6.2 is in respect of only one class of shares; and
  - 11.6.3 is in favour of not more than four transferees.
- 11.7 If the Directors refuse to register a transfer of a share they shall within two Months after the date on which the instrument of transfer was lodged with the Company send to the proposed transferor and transferee Notice of the refusal.
- 11.8 All instruments of transfer relating to transfers of shares which are registered shall be retained by the Company but any instrument of transfer relating to transfers of shares which the Directors decline to register shall (except in any case of fraud) be returned to the Person depositing the same.
- 11.9 The registration of transfers of shares or of transfers of any class of shares may be suspended at such times and for such periods as the Directors may determine.
- 11.10 Unless otherwise decided by the Directors in their sole discretion no fee shall be charged in respect of the registration of any instrument of transfer or other document relating to or affecting the title to any share.
- 11.11 In respect of any allotment of any share the Directors shall have the same right to decline to approve the registration of any renouncee of any allottee as if the application to allot and the renunciation were a transfer of a share under these Articles.

(0/03/2022

#### 12. TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

- In the case of the death of a Member the survivor or survivors where the deceased was a joint 12.1 Holder and the executors or administrators of the deceased where he was a sole or only surviving Holder shall be the only Persons recognised by the Company as having any title to his interest in the shares but nothing in this Article shall release the estate of a deceased joint Holder from any liability in respect of any share which had been jointly held by him.
- 12.2 Any Person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a Member may upon such evidence as to his title being produced as may from time to time be required by the Directors and subject as hereinafter provided elect either to be registered himself as the Holder of the share or to have some Person nominated by him registered as the Holder thereof.
- If the Person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered himself he shall deliver or send 12.3 to the Company a Notice Signed by him stating that he so elects. If he shall elect to have another Person registered he shall testify his election by an instrument of transfer of the share in favour of that Person. All the limitations restrictions and provisions of these Articles relating to the right to transfer and the registration of transfers of shares shall be applicable to any such Notice or instrument of transfer as aforesaid as if it were an instrument of transfer executed by the Member and the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of the Member had not occurred.
- 12.4 A Person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a Member shall be entitled to the same dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were the Holder of the share except that he shall not before being registered as the Holder of the share be entitled in respect of it to exercise any right conferred by membership in relation to meetings of the Company provided always that the Directors may at any time give Notice requiring any such Person to elect either to be registered himself or to transfer the share and if the Notice is not complied with within one Month such Person shall be deemed to have so elected to be registered himself and all the restrictions on the transfer and transmission of shares contained in these Articles shall apply to such election.

#### 13. **GENERAL MEETINGS**

- 13.1 Unless the Company by Special Resolution otherwise determines, the Company shall not be required to hold annual general meetings.
- The Directors may whenever they think fit and upon a requisition of Members pursuant to the 13.2 provisions of the Law the Directors shall forthwith proceed to convene a general meeting for a date not later than two Months after the receipt of the requisition. If there are not sufficient Directors to convene the general meeting any Director or any Member may convene such a meeting.
- 13.3 At any general meeting called pursuant to a requisition unless such meeting is called by the Directors no business other than that stated in the requisition as the objects of the meeting shall tentetbe transacted.

### 14. CLASS MEETINGS

Save as otherwise provided in these Articles, all the provisions of these Articles and of the Law relating to general meetings of the Company and to the proceedings thereat shall apply *mutatis mutandis* to every class meeting. A Director who is entitled to receive Notice of general meetings of the Company in accordance with Article 15.4 shall also be entitled, unless he has notified the Secretary in Writing of his contrary desire, to receive Notice of all class meetings. At any class meeting the Holders of shares of the relevant class shall have one vote in respect of each share of that class held by them.

### 15. NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

- 15.1 At least fourteen Clear Days' Notice shall be given of every general meeting, including without limitation, every general meeting called for the passing of a Special Resolution.
- 15.2 A meeting of the Company shall notwithstanding that it is called by shorter Notice than that specified in Article 15.1 be deemed to have been duly called if it is so agreed:
  - 15.2.1 in the case of a meeting called as the annual general meeting by all the Members entitled to attend and vote thereat; and
  - 15.2.2 in the case of any other meeting by a majority in number of the Members having a right to attend and vote at the meeting being a majority together holding not less than the minimum percentage of voting rights prescribed by the Law.
- 15.3 Every Notice shall specify the place the day and the time of the meeting and the general nature of the business to be transacted and in the case of an annual general meeting shall specify the meeting as such.
- Subject to the provisions of these Articles and to any restrictions imposed on any shares, Notice of every general meeting shall be given to all the Members, to all Persons entitled to a share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a Member, to the Auditors (if any) and to every Director who has notified the Secretary in Writing of his desire to receive Notice of general meetings.
- 15.5 In every Notice calling a meeting of the Company there shall appear with reasonable prominence a statement that a Member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote instead of him and that a proxy need not also be a Member.
- 15.6 The accidental omission to give Notice of a meeting to or the non-receipt of Notice of a meeting by any Person entitled to receive Notice shall not invalidate the proceedings at that meeting.

# 16. PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

16.1 The business of an annual general meeting shall be to receive and consider the accounts of the Company and the reports of the Directors and Auditors (if any), to elect Directors (if proposed), to elect Auditors (if proposed) and fix their remuneration, to sanction a dividend (if thought fit so to do) and to transact any other business of which Notice has been given.

10/02/2022

- No business shall be transacted at any general meeting except the adjournment of the meeting unless a quorum of Members is Present at the time when the meeting proceeds to business. Such quorum shall consist of not less than two Members Present but so that not less than two individuals will constitute the quorum, provided that if at any time all of the issued shares in the Company are held by one Member such quorum shall consist of that Member Present.
- 16.3 If a Member is by any means in communication with one or more other Members so that each Member participating in the communication can hear what is said by any other of them each Member so participating in the communication is deemed to be Present at a meeting with the other Members so participating notwithstanding that all the Members so participating are not Present together in the same place. A meeting at which any or all of the Members participate as aforesaid shall be deemed to be a general meeting of the Company for the purposes of these Articles notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles and all of the provisions of these Articles and of the Law relating to general meetings of the Company and to the proceedings thereat shall apply mutatis mutandis to every such meeting.
- 16.4 If within half-an-hour from the time appointed for the meeting a quorum is not Present or if during the meeting a quorum ceases to be Present the meeting shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next week at the same time and place or to such other time and place as the Directors shall determine and if at such adjourned meeting a quorum is not Present within half-an-hour from the time appointed for the holding of the meeting those Members Present shall constitute a quorum.
- 16.5 The chairman (if any) of the Directors shall preside as chairman at every general meeting of the Company or if there is no such chairman or if he shall not be Present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for the holding of the meeting or is unwilling to act, the Directors shall select one of their number to be chairman of the meeting.
- 16.6 If at any meeting no Director is willing to act as chairman or if no Director is Present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the Members Present shall choose one of their number to be chairman of the meeting.
- 16.7 The chairman may with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is Present (and shall if so directed by the meeting) adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to place but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took place. When a meeting is adjourned for thirty days or more, Notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of the original meeting. Save as aforesaid it shall not be necessary to give any Notice of any adjourned meeting or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.
- At every general meeting, the chairman may determine the method for casting and counting votes, being such method as appears to him to be practicable and reasonable in the circumstances. The chairman's decision in this regard shall be final unless an objection is raised by a Member Present before or on the declaration of the result of the vote. In the event that such an objection is raised, each resolution to which it relates shall be put to the vote or (as the case may be) put again to the vote according to a procedure, being consistent in all

respects with the voting rights of the Members Present, determined by a majority of Members Present who are entitled to vote thereon and the result of the vote shall be determined accordingly.

- 16.9 In the event of an equality of votes at any general meeting the chairman shall not be entitled to a second or casting vote.
- 16.10 Anything which may be done at a general meeting of the Company (save for the passing of a resolution removing the Auditors) may be done by a resolution in Writing passed by all the Members who, at the date when the resolution is deemed passed, would be entitled to vote on the resolution if it were proposed at a general meeting. A resolution in Writing may consist of several instruments in the same form each Signed by or on behalf of one or more Members. A resolution in Writing may be sent or submitted to Members in hard copy or electronic form or in such other manner as the Directors may resolve. A resolution in Writing shall be deemed to be passed when all the relevant Members have in accordance with the Law signified agreement to the resolution in hard copy or electronic form or in such other manner as the Directors may resolve.

#### **VOTES OF MEMBERS** 17.

- 17.1 Subject to any special rights restrictions or prohibitions as regards voting for the time being attached to any shares as may be specified in the terms of issue thereof or these Articles, every Member Present shall have one vote for each share of which he is the Holder.
- 17.2 In the case of joint Holders of any share such Persons shall not have the right of voting individually in respect of such share but shall elect one of their number to represent them and to vote whether personally or by proxy in their name. In default of such election the Person whose name appears first in order in the Register in respect of such share shall be the only Person entitled to vote in respect thereof.
- 17.3 A Member in respect of whom an order has been made by any court having jurisdiction (whether in the Island of Jersey or elsewhere) in matters concerning legal incapacity or interdiction may vote by his attorney, curator, receiver or other Person authorised in that behalf appointed by that court and any such attorney, curator, receiver or other Person may vote by proxy. Evidence to the satisfaction of the Directors of the authority of such attorney, curator, receiver or other Person may be required by the Directors prior to any vote being exercised by such attorney, curator, receiver or other Person.
- 17.4 No Member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless all calls or other sums presently payable by him in respect of shares in the Company of which he is Holder or one of the joint Holders have been paid.
- 17.5 No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is given or tendered and every vote not disallowed at such meeting shall be valid for all purposes. Any such objection made in due time shall be referred to the chairman of the meeting whose decision shall be final and conclusive. szeskolo

- 17.6 The Directors may at the expense of the Company send by post or otherwise to the Members instruments of proxy (with or without provision for their return prepaid) for use at any general meeting or at any separate meeting of the Holders of any class of shares of the Company either in blank or nominating in the alternative any one or more of the Directors or any other Persons. If for the purpose of any meeting invitations to appoint as proxy a Person or one or more of a number of Persons specified in the invitations are issued at the Company's expense they shall be issued to all (and not to some only) of the Members entitled to be sent a Notice of the meeting and to vote thereat by proxy.
- 17.7 The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in Writing in any common form or as approved by the Directors and shall be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in Writing or if the appointor is a corporation either under seal or under the hand of a duly authorised officer, attorney or other representative. A proxy need not be a Member.
- 17.8 The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is Signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at the Office or at such other place as is specified for that purpose by the Notice convening the meeting not less than forty-eight hours before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the Person named in the instrument proposes to vote. In calculating the period referred to in the foregoing of this Article 17.8, no account shall be taken of any part of a day that is not a "working day" within the meaning of Article 96(4B) of the Law. An instrument of proxy which is not deposited in the manner so required shall be valid only if it is approved by all the other Members who are Present at the meeting.
- 17.9 Unless the contrary is stated thereon the instrument appointing a proxy shall be as valid as well for any adjournment of the meeting as for the meeting to which it relates.
- 17.10 A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the principal or revocation of the proxy or of the authority under which the proxy was executed provided that no Notice in Writing of such death, insanity or revocation shall have been received by the Company at the Office before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which such vote is cast.

### 18. CORPORATE MEMBERS

- Subject to the provisions of the Law, any body corporate which is a Member may by resolution of its directors or other governing body authorise such Person(s) as it thinks fit to act as its representative(s) at any meeting of Members (or of any class of Members) and the Person(s) so authorised shall be entitled to exercise on behalf of the body corporate which he/they represent(s) the same powers as that body corporate could exercise if it were an individual.
- 18.2 Where (a) Person(s) is/are authorised to represent a body corporate at a general meeting of the Company the Directors or the chairman of the meeting may require him/them to produce a certified copy of the resolution from which he/they derive(s) his/their authority.

-/bombai

# 19. DIRECTORS

- 19.1 The Company may by Ordinary Resolution determine the maximum and minimum number of Directors and unless and until otherwise so determined, and subject to the provisions of the Law, the minimum number of Directors shall be one.
- 19.2 A Director need not be a Member but provided he has notified the Secretary in Writing of his desire to receive Notice of general meetings in accordance with Article 15.4 he shall be entitled to receive Notice of any general meeting and, subject to Article 14, all separate meetings of the Holders of any class of shares in the Company. Whether or not a Director is entitled to receive such Notice, he may nevertheless attend and speak at any such meeting.

### 20. ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

- 20.1 Any Director (other than an alternate Director) may at his sole discretion and at any time and from time to time appoint any other Director or any other Person (other than one disqualified or ineligible by law to act as a director of a company) as an alternate Director to attend and vote in his place at any meetings of Directors at which he is not personally present. Each Director shall be at liberty to appoint under this Article more than one alternate Director provided that only one such alternate Director may at any one time act on behalf of the Director by whom he has been appointed.
- An alternate Director while he holds office as such shall be entitled to receive Notice (which need not be in Writing) of all meetings of Directors and of all meetings of committees of Directors of which his appointor is a member and to attend and to exercise all the rights and privileges of his appointor at all such meetings at which his appointor is not personally present and generally to perform all the functions of his appointor as a Director in his absence.
- 20.3 An alternate Director shall *ipso facto* vacate office if and when his appointment expires or the Director who appointed him ceases to be a Director of the Company or removes the alternate Director from office by Notice under his hand served upon the Company.
- An alternate Director shall be entitled to be paid all travelling and other expenses reasonably incurred by him in attending meetings. The remuneration (if any) of an alternate Director shall be payable out of the remuneration payable to the Director appointing him as may be agreed between them.
- 20.5 Where a Director acts as an alternate Director for another Director he shall be entitled to vote for such other Director as well as on his own account, but no Director shall at any meeting be entitled to act as alternate Director for more than one Director.
- 20.6 A Director who is also appointed an alternate Director shall be considered as two Directors for the purpose of making a quorum of Directors when such quorum shall exceed two.

# 21. POWERS OF DIRECTORS

21.1 The business of the Company shall be managed by the Directors who may pay all expenses incurred in promoting and registering the Company and may exercise all such powers of the

tember 10/03/2022 Company as are not by the Law or these Articles required to be exercised by the Company in general meeting.

- 21.2 The Directors' powers shall be subject to the provisions of these Articles, to the provisions of the Law and to such regulations (being not inconsistent with the aforesaid regulations or provisions) as may be prescribed by the Company in general meeting but no regulations made by the Company in general meeting shall invalidate any prior act of the Directors which would have been valid if such regulations had not been made.
- 21.3 The Directors may by power of attorney, mandate or otherwise appoint any Person to be the agent of the Company for such purposes and on such conditions as they determine including authority for the agent to delegate all or any of his powers.

# 22. DELEGATION OF DIRECTORS' POWERS

- 22.1 The Directors may delegate any of their powers to committees consisting of such Director or Directors or such other Persons as they think fit. Any committee so formed shall in the exercise of the powers so delegated conform to any regulations that may be imposed on it by the Directors.
- 22.2 The meetings and proceedings of any such committee consisting of two or more Persons shall be governed by the provisions of these Articles regulating the meetings and proceedings of the Directors so far as the same are applicable and are not superseded by any regulations made by the Directors under this Article.

### 23. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

- Where these Articles are adopted by the Company either upon incorporation or for any other reason prior to the appointment of the first Directors, the first Directors of the Company shall be appointed in Writing by the subscribers to the Memorandum of Association or by a majority of them. Any Director so appointed, and any Director duly holding office prior to the adoption of these Articles, shall continue to hold office until he resigns or is disqualified or removed in accordance with the provisions hereof.
- 23.2 The Directors shall have power at any time and from time to time to appoint any Person (other than one disqualified or ineligible by law to act as a director of a company) to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors provided that the appointment does not cause the number of Directors to exceed any number fixed by or in accordance with these Articles as the maximum number of Directors. Any Director so appointed shall hold office until he resigns or is disqualified or removed in accordance with the provisions of these Articles.
- 23.3 The Company may by Ordinary Resolution:
  - 23.3.1 appoint any Person (other than one disqualified or ineligible by law to act as a director of a company) as a Director; and
  - 23.3.2 remove any Director from office.

23.4 The Company shall keep or cause to be kept a register of particulars with regard to its Directors in the manner required by the Law.

# 24. RESIGNATION, DISQUALIFICATION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

- 24.1 The office of a Director shall be vacated if the Director:
  - 24.1.1 resigns his office by Notice to the Company;
  - 24.1.2 ceases to be a Director by virtue of any provision of the Law or he becomes prohibited or disqualified by law from being a Director;
  - 24.1.3 becomes Bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his creditors generally;
  - 24.1.4 becomes of unsound mind; or
  - 24.1.5 is removed from office by Ordinary Resolution passed pursuant to Article 23.3.2.

# 25. REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES OF DIRECTORS

- 25.1 The Directors shall be entitled to such remuneration as the Directors may determine subject to any limitation as the Company may by Ordinary Resolution determine.
- 25.2 The Directors shall be paid out of the funds of the Company their travelling hotel and other expenses properly and necessarily incurred by them in connection with their attendance at meetings of the Directors or Members or otherwise in connection with the discharge of their duties.

# 26. **EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS**

- 26.1 The Directors may from time to time appoint one or more of their number to the office of managing director or to any other executive office under the Company on such terms and for such periods as they may determine.
- 26.2 The appointment of any Director to any executive office shall be subject to termination if he ceases to be a Director but without prejudice to any claim for damages for breach of any contract of service between him and the Company.
- 26.3 The Directors may entrust to and confer upon a Director holding any executive office any of the powers exercisable by the Directors upon such terms and conditions and with such restrictions as they think fit and either collaterally with or to the exclusion of their own powers and may from time to time revoke withdraw alter or vary all or any of such powers.

## 27. DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

27.1 A Director who has, directly or indirectly, an interest in a transaction entered into or proposed to be entered into by the Company or by a subsidiary of the Company which to a material

extent conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the Company and of which he is aware, shall disclose to the Company the nature and extent of his interest.

- 27.2 For the purposes of Article 27.1:
  - 27.2.1 the disclosure shall be made at the first meeting of the Directors at which the transaction is considered after the Director concerned becomes aware of the circumstances giving rise to his duty to make it or, if for any reason he fails to do so at such meeting, as soon as practical after the meeting, by Notice in Writing delivered to the Secretary;
  - 27.2.2 the Secretary, where the disclosure is made to him shall inform the Directors that it has been made and shall in any event table the Notice of the disclosure at the next meeting after it is made;
  - 27.2.3 a disclosure to the Company by a Director in accordance with Article 27.1 that he is to be regarded as interested in a transaction with a specified Person is sufficient disclosure of his interest in any such transaction entered into after the disclosure is made; and
  - 27.2.4 any disclosure made at a meeting of the Directors shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.
- 27.3 Subject to the provisions of the Law, a Director may hold any other office or place of profit under the Company (other than the office of Auditor) in conjunction with his office of Director for such period and on such terms as to tenure of office, remuneration and otherwise as the Directors may determine.
- 27.4 Subject to the provisions of the Law, and provided that he has disclosed to the Company the nature and extent of any of his material interests in accordance with Article 27.1, a Director notwithstanding his office:
  - 27.4.1 may be a party to or otherwise interested in any transaction or arrangement with the Company or in which the Company is otherwise interested;
  - 27.4.2 may be a director or other officer of or employed by or a party to any transaction or arrangement with or otherwise interested in any body corporate promoted by the Company or in which the Company is otherwise interested;
  - 27.4.3 shall not by reason of his office be accountable to the Company for any benefit which he derives from any such office or employment or from any such transaction or arrangement or from any interest in any such body corporate and no such transaction or arrangement shall be liable to be avoided on the ground of any such interest or benefit; and
  - 27.4.4 may act by himself or his firm in a professional capacity for the Company and he or his firm shall be entitled to remuneration for professional services as if he were not a Director.

21

### 28. PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

- 28.1 The Directors may meet together for the despatch of business adjourn and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit.
- A Director may at any time and the Secretary at the request of a Director shall summon a meeting of the Directors by giving to each Director and alternate Director not less than twenty-four hours' Notice of the meeting provided that any meeting may be convened at shorter Notice and in such manner as each Director or his alternate Director shall approve and provided further that unless otherwise resolved by the Directors Notices of Directors' meetings need not be in Writing.
- 28.3 Questions arising at any meeting shall be determined by a majority of votes.
- 28.4 In the case of an equality of votes the chairman shall not have a second or casting vote.
- 28.5 A Director who is also an alternate Director shall be entitled to a separate vote for each Director for whom he acts as alternate in addition to his own vote.
- A meeting of the Directors at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all powers and discretions for the time being exercisable by the Directors. Wherever two or more Directors hold office the quorum necessary for the transaction of the business of the Directors shall be two or such greater number as may be fixed by the Directors. Where the quorum is two or more Directors, an alternate Director shall be counted in a quorum but so that not less than two individuals will constitute the quorum. Where only one Director is in office he may, subject to Article 28.9, exercise alone all the powers and discretions for the time being exercisable by the Directors.
- 28.7 A Director notwithstanding his interest may be counted in the quorum present at any meeting at which any contract or arrangement in which he is interested is considered and, provided he has made the disclosure required by Article 27.1, he may vote in respect of any such contract or arrangement except those concerning his own terms of appointment.
- 28.8 If a Director is by any means in communication with one or more other Directors so that each Director participating in the communication can hear what is said by any other of them each Director so participating in the communication is deemed to be present at a meeting with the other Directors so participating notwithstanding that all the Directors so participating are not present together in the same place.
- 28.9 The continuing Directors or Director may act notwithstanding any vacancies in their number but if the number of Directors is less than the number fixed as the quorum or becomes less than the number required by the Law the continuing Directors or Director may act only for the purpose of filling vacancies or of calling a general meeting of the Company. If there are no Directors or no Director is able or willing to act then any Member or the Secretary may summon a general meeting for the purpose of appointing Directors.

- The Directors may from time to time elect from their number, and remove, a chairman and/or deputy chairman and/or vice-chairman of the board of Directors and determine the period for which they are to hold office.
- 28.11 The chairman, or in his absence the deputy chairman, or in his absence the vice-chairman, shall preside at all meetings of the Directors but if no such chairman, deputy chairman or vicechairman be elected or if at any meeting the chairman, deputy chairman or vice-chairman be not present within five minutes after the time appointed for holding the same, the Directors present may choose one of their number to be the chairman of the meeting.
- 28.12 A resolution in Writing Signed by all the Directors entitled to receive Notice of a meeting of Directors or of a committee of Directors shall be valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Directors or of a committee of Directors duly convened and held and may consist of several documents in like form each Signed by one or more Directors but a resolution Signed by an alternate Director need not also be Signed by his appointor and if it is Signed by a Director who has appointed an alternate Director it need not be Signed by the alternate Director in that capacity.
- 28.13 All acts done bona fide by any meeting of Directors or of a committee appointed by the Directors or by any Person acting as a Director shall notwithstanding that it is afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of any such Director or committee or Person acting as aforesaid or that they or any of them were disqualified or had vacated office or were not entitled to vote be as valid as if every such Person had been duly appointed and was qualified and had continued to be a Director or a member of a committee appointed by the Directors and had been entitled to vote.

#### 29. **MINUTE BOOK**

- 29.1 The Directors shall cause to be entered in books kept for the purpose:
  - 29.1.1 the minutes of all proceedings at general meetings, class meetings, Directors' meetings and meetings of committees appointed by the Directors;
  - 29.1.2 all resolutions in Writing passed in accordance with these Articles;
  - 29.1.3 every memorandum in Writing of a Sole Member-Director Contract (as defined in Article 29.3) which is drawn up pursuant to Article 29.3;
  - 29.1.4 every record in Writing of a Sole Member's Decision (as defined in Article 29.4); and
  - 29.1.5 all such other records as are from time to time required by the Law or, in the opinion of the Directors, by good practice to be minuted or retained in the books of the Company,
- 29.2 Any minutes of a meeting if purporting to be Signed by the chairman of the meeting at which the proceedings were had or by the chairman of the next succeeding meeting shall be conclusive evidence of the proceedings. losale".

23

- 29.3 This Article 29.3 applies where the Company has only one Member and that Member is also a Director. If the Company, acting otherwise than in the ordinary course of its business, enters into a contract with such Member (a "Sole Member-Director Contract") and that Sole Member-Director Contract is not in Writing, the terms thereof shall be:
  - 29.3.1 set out in a memorandum in Writing;
  - 29.3.2 recorded in the minutes of the first meeting of the Directors following the making of the contract; or
  - 29.3.3 recorded in such other manner or on such other occasion as may for the time being be permitted or required by the Law.
- This Article 29.4 applies where the Company has only one Member and that Member has taken a decision which may be taken by the Company in general meeting and which has effect in law as if agreed by the Company in general meeting (a "Sole Member's Decision"). A Sole Member's Decision may (without limitation) be taken by way of resolution in Writing but if not so taken, the sole Member shall provide the Company with a record in Writing of his decision as soon as practicable thereafter.

# 30. SECRETARY

- 30.1 The Secretary shall be appointed by the Directors for such term at such remuneration and upon such conditions as they may think fit and any Secretary so appointed may be removed by the Directors.
- 30.2 Anything required or authorised to be done by or to the Secretary may if the office is vacant or there is for any other reason no secretary capable of acting be done by or to any assistant or deputy secretary or if there is no assistant or deputy secretary capable of acting by or to any Person authorised generally or specifically in that behalf by the Directors.
- 30.3 The Company shall keep or cause to be kept at the Office a register of particulars with regard to its Secretary in the manner required by the Law.

# 31. THE SEAL

- 31.1 The Directors may determine that the Company shall have a Seal. Subject to the Law, if the Company has a Seal the Directors may determine that it shall also have an official seal for use outside of the Island and an official seal for sealing securities issued by the Company or for sealing documents creating or evidencing securities so issued.
- 31.2 The Directors shall provide for the safe custody of all seals and no seal shall be used except by the authority of a resolution of the Directors or of a committee of the Directors authorised in that behalf by the Directors.
- 31.3 The Directors may from time to time make such regulations as they think fit determining the Persons and the number of such Persons who shall sign every instrument to which a seal is

(0103/2022

- affixed and until otherwise so determined every such instrument shall be Signed by one Director and by the Secretary or by a second Director.
- The Company may authorise an agent appointed for the purpose to affix any seal of the Company to a document to which the Company is a party.

### 32. AUTHENTICATION OF DOCUMENTS

- Any Director or the Secretary or any Person appointed by the Directors for the purpose shall have power to authenticate any documents affecting the constitution of the Company (including the Memorandum of Association and these Articles), any resolutions passed by the Company or the Directors and any books, records, documents and accounts relating to the business of the Company and to certify copies thereof or extracts therefrom as true copies or extracts.
- Where any books, records, documents or accounts of the Company are situated elsewhere than at the Office the local manager or other Officer or the company having the custody thereof shall be deemed to be a Person appointed by the Directors for the purposes set out in Article 32.1.

#### DIVIDENDS

- 33.1 Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Company may by Ordinary Resolution declare dividends in accordance with the respective rights of the Members but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the Directors.
- 33.2 Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Directors may if they think fit from time to time pay to the Members such interim dividends as they may determine.
- 33.3 If at any time the share capital of the Company is divided into different classes the Directors may pay such interim dividends in respect of those shares which confer on the Holders thereof deferred or non-preferred rights as well as in respect of those shares which confer on the Holders thereof preferential rights with regard to dividend.
- 33.4 Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Directors may also pay half-yearly or at other suitable intervals to be settled by them any dividend which may be payable at a fixed rate.
- Provided the Directors act bona fide they shall not incur any personal liability to the Holders of shares conferring a preference for any damage that they may suffer by reason of the payment of an interim dividend on any shares having deferred or non-preferred rights.
- Subject to any particular rights or limitations as to dividend for the time being attached to any shares as may be specified in these Articles or upon which such shares may be issued, all dividends shall be declared apportioned and paid *pro rata* according to the amounts Paid Up on the shares on which the dividend is paid (otherwise than in advance of calls) provided that if any share is issued on terms providing that it shall rank for dividend as if Paid Up (in whole or in part) or as from a particular date (either past or future) such share shall rank for dividend accordingly.

- 33.7 The Directors may before recommending any dividend set aside such sums as they think proper as a reserve or reserves which shall at the discretion of the Directors be applicable for any purpose to which such sums may be properly applied and pending such application may at the like discretion be employed in the business of the Company or be invested in such investments as the Directors may from time to time think fit.
- 33.8 The Directors may carry forward to the account of the succeeding year or years any balance which they do not think fit either to dividend or to place to reserve.
- 33.9 A general meeting declaring a dividend may upon the recommendation of the Directors direct that payment of such dividend shall be satisfied wholly or in part by the distribution of specific assets and in particular of Paid-Up shares or debentures of any other company and the Directors shall give effect to such resolution. Where any difficulty arises in regard to the distribution the Directors may settle the same as they think expedient and in particular may:
  - 33.9.1 issue certificates representing part of a shareholding or fractions of shares and may fix the value for distribution of such specific assets or any part thereof;
  - 33.9.2 determine that cash payment shall be made to any Members on the basis of the value so fixed in order to adjust the rights of Members;
  - 33.9.3 vest any specific assets in trustees upon trust for the Persons entitled to the dividend as may seem expedient to the Directors; and
  - 33.9.4 generally make such arrangements for the allotment, acceptance and sale of such specific assets or certificates representing part of a shareholding or fractions of shares or any part thereof or otherwise as they think fit.
- 33.10 Any resolution declaring a dividend on the shares of any class whether a resolution of the Company in general meeting or a resolution of the Directors or any resolution of the Directors for the payment of a fixed dividend on a date prescribed for the payment thereof may specify that the same shall be payable to the Persons registered as the Holders of shares of the class concerned at the close of business on a particular date notwithstanding that it may be a date prior to that on which the resolution is passed (or as the case may be that prescribed for payment of a fixed dividend) and thereupon the dividend shall be payable to them in accordance with their respective holdings so registered but without prejudice to the rights inter se in respect of such dividend of transferors and transferees of any shares of the relevant class.
- 33.11 The Directors may deduct from any dividend or other monies payable to any Member on or in respect of a share all sums of money (if any) presently payable by him to the Company on account of calls or otherwise in relation to the shares of the Company.
- 33.12 Any dividend or other monies payable in respect of a share may be paid by cheque or warrant sent through the post to the registered address of the Member or Person entitled thereto and in the case of joint Holders to any one of such joint Holders or to such Person and to such address as the Holder or joint Holders may in Writing direct. Every such cheque or warrant shall be made payable to the order of the Person to whom it is sent or to such other Person As 10/03/2022

the Holder or joint Holders may in Writing direct and payment of the cheque or warrant shall be a good discharge to the Company. Every such cheque or warrant shall be sent at the risk of the Person entitled to the money represented thereby.

- 33.13 All unclaimed dividends may be invested or otherwise made use of by the Directors for the benefit of the Company until claimed. No dividend shall bear interest as against the Company.
- 33.14 Any dividend which has remained unclaimed for a period of ten years from the date of declaration thereof shall if the Directors so resolve be forfeited and cease to remain owing by the Company and shall thenceforth belong to the Company absolutely.

# 34. CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS

The Directors may with the authority of an Ordinary Resolution of the Company:

- 34.1 subject as hereinafter provided, resolve that it is desirable to capitalise any undistributed profits of the Company (including profits carried and standing to any reserve or reserves) not required for paying any fixed dividends on any shares entitled to fixed preferential dividends with or without further participation in profits or to capitalise any sum carried to reserve as a result of the sale or revaluation of the assets of the Company (other than goodwill) or any part thereof or to capitalise any sum standing to the credit of the Company's share premium account or capital redemption reserve fund;
- appropriate the profits or sum resolved to be capitalised to the Members in the proportion in which such profits or sum would have been divisible amongst them had the same been applicable and had been applied in paying dividends and to apply such profits or sum on their behalf either in or towards paying up any amount for the time being unpaid on any shares held by such Members respectively or in paying up in full either at par or at such premium as the said resolution may provide any unissued shares or debentures of the Company such shares or debentures to be allotted and distributed credited as fully Paid Up to and amongst such Members in the proportions aforesaid or partly in one way and partly in the other provided that the share premium account and the capital redemption reserve fund and any unrealised profits may for the purposes of this Article only be applied in the paying up of unissued shares to be allotted to Members credited as fully Paid Up;
- 34.3 make all appropriations and applications of the profits or sum resolved to be capitalised thereby and all allotments and issues of fully paid shares or debentures if any and generally shall do all acts and things required to give effect thereto with full power to the Directors to make such provision by the issue of certificates representing part of a shareholding or fractions of shares or by payments in cash or otherwise as they think fit in the case of shares or debentures becoming distributable in fractions; and
- authorise any Person to enter on behalf of all the Members entitled to the benefit of such appropriations and applications into an agreement with the Company providing for the allotment to them respectively credited as fully Paid Up of any further shares or debentures to which they may be entitled upon such capitalisation and any agreement made under such authority shall be effective and binding on all such Members.

Horter (0/03/2022

### 35. ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT

- 35.1 The Company shall keep accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and are such as to:
  - 35.1.1 disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company at that time; and
  - 35.1.2 enable the Directors to ensure that any accounts prepared by the Company comply with requirements of the Law.
- 35.2 The Directors shall prepare accounts of the Company made up to such date in each year as the Directors shall from time to time determine in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the Law.
- 35.3 No Member shall (as such) have any right to inspect any accounting records or other book or document of the Company except as conferred by the Law or authorised by the Directors or by Ordinary Resolution of the Company.
- 35.4 The Directors or the Company by Ordinary Resolution may from time to time appoint Auditors for any period or periods to examine the accounts of the Company and to report thereon in accordance with the Law.

# 36. NOTICES

- 36.1 In the case of joint Holders of a share all Notices shall be given to that one of the joint Holders whose name stands first in the Register in respect of the joint holding and Notice so given shall be sufficient Notice to all the joint Holders.
- A Notice may be given to any Person either personally or by sending it by post to him at his registered address. Where a Notice is sent by post service of the Notice shall be deemed to be effected by properly addressing prepaying and posting a letter containing the Notice and to have been effected one Clear Day after the day it was posted.
- 36.3 Any Member Present at any meeting of the Company shall for all purposes be deemed to have received due Notice of such meeting and where requisite of the purposes for which such meeting was convened.
- A Notice may be given by the Company to the Persons entitled to a share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a Member by sending or delivering it in any manner authorised by these Articles for the giving of Notice to a Member addressed to them by name or by the title of representatives of the deceased or trustee of the Bankrupt or curator of the Member or by any like description at the address if any supplied for that purpose by the Persons claiming to be so entitled. Until such an address has been supplied a Notice may be given in any manner in which it might have been given if the death, bankruptcy or incapacity had not occurred. If more than one Person would be entitled to receive a Notice in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a Member Notice given to any one of such Persons shall be sufficient Notice to all such Persons.

28

Notwithstanding any of the provisions of these Articles any Notice to be given by the Company to a Director or to a Member may be given in any manner agreed in advance by any such Director or Member.

### 37. WINDING UP

- 37.1 Subject to any particular rights or limitations for the time being attached to any shares as may be specified in these Articles or upon which such shares may be issued if the Company is wound up, the assets available for distribution among the Members shall be applied first in repaying to the Members the amount Paid Up on their shares respectively and if such assets shall be more than sufficient to repay to the Members the whole amount Paid Up on their shares the balance shall be distributed among the Members in proportion to the amount which at the time of the commencement of the winding up had been actually Paid Up on their said shares respectively.
- 37.2 If the Company is wound up, the Company may with the sanction of a Special Resolution and any other sanction required by the Law divide the whole or any part of the assets of the Company among the Members in specie and the liquidator or where there is no liquidator the Directors may for that purpose value any assets and determine how the division shall be carried out as between the Members or different classes of Members and with the like sanction vest the whole or any part of the assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the Members as the liquidator or the Directors (as the case may be) with the like sanction determine but no Member shall be compelled to accept any assets upon which there is a liability.

# 38. INDEMNITY

- 38.1 In so far as the Law allows, every present or former Officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any loss or liability incurred by him by reason of being or having been such an Officer.
- 38.2 The Directors may without sanction of the Company in general meeting authorise the purchase or maintenance by the Company for any Officer or former Officer of the Company of any such insurance as is permitted by the Law in respect of any liability which would otherwise attach to such Officer or former Officer.

# 39. NON-APPLICATION OF STANDARD TABLE

The regulations constituting the Standard Table prescribed pursuant to the Law shall not apply to the Company and are hereby expressly excluded in their entirety.

We, the subscribers to the Memorandum of Association of the Company, desire to incorporate the Company subject to the above Articles of Association.

Name and Address Signature of

Number of limited shares taken by Subscriber at

of Subscriber

**Subscriber** 

**JTC Corporate** 

Mouis One

Services Limited

28 Esplanade St Helier

Jersey

JE2 3QA

WITNESS to the above signatories:

Mark Russell

28 Esplanade St Helier

Jersey

JE2 3QA

10/03/2022

30